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| am pleased to present the annual results of Raymond
Industrial Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December
2022.

During the financial year (“FY”) of 2022, the Group faced
strong challenges of supply chain disruptions, continuous
geopolitical tensions, COVID-19 pandemic, rising interest
rates and the financial shocks in the People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”) real estate industry that caused inflationary
pressures and lower sales demand worldwide. To alleviate
the impact of these uncertainties, the Group opted to
exercise financial prudence to have safety stock for
contingency planning, and to optimize fixed costs by
investing in new machineries prudently and adopting efficient
cost cutting measures to cope with significant sudden drop
in sales demand worldwide.

Disruptive events such as the Russia-Ukraine war played
a much larger role in determining an organization’s destiny,
and the Group’s management needed to react quickly
to formulate an effective new strategy to counter the
disruptive market forces emerging from within a business
ecosystem. In December 2022, after years of testing and
tracking her citizens for the coronavirus disease, the PRC
abruptly abandoned the zero-COVID approach and quickly
dismantled restrictions that largely kept the coronavirus
disease at bay for three years. The resulting eruption in
infections in December 2022 (which infected approximately
65% of the Group’s workforce in Nansha, the PRC)
had been the final key test for the ability of the Group’s
management to find within a short period of time an agile
and resilient closed-loop manufacturing solution to maintain
operations ongoing despite the growing weekly infection
cases.
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Chairman’s Statement
TE®RE

Despite all these economic, geopolitical and pandemic-
related uncertainties, the Group managed to tackle each
challenge and to launch more new and innovative products
during the second half of 2022. For FY2022, the Group’s
consolidated turnover decreased to HK$1,063,058,000,
representing a decrease of approximately 25.85%
as compared with the same period in the previous
year. Nevertheless, the net profit of the Group was
HK$30,504,000, representing a decrease of approximately
27.30%, as compared with the net profit of HK$41,960,000
for the same period in FY2021. Cash generated from
operations was HK$136,906,000 in FY2022. Net
cash and cash equivalents at the end of FY2022 was
HK$334,379,000 (HK$30,050,000 of which were dividend
paid out during FY2022) as compared with HK$244,802,000
at the beginning of FY2022. The positive operating cash
flow and substantial cash balances enable the Group to
continue paying dividends to the shareholders. At the same
time, the Group continues to invest excess cash in research
and development (“R&D”), new technology and automation
equipment. Consequently, the Group continues to qualify
as a High and New Technology Enterprise (‘HNTE”) in the
PRC.

In FY2022, the Group invested in R&D research projects
both in the PRC and in Hong Kong, and the Group’s
management anticipated that these R&D innovations could
help the Group enter new market segments to diversify
our risks and improve our profit margins. To achieve AloT
(Artificial Intelligence and Internet of Things) compatibility, the
Group continues to invest in the information systems and
automated production processes to convert the operations
to 5G-ready and can utilize big data and mobile surveillance
systems to improve quality systems. With more digital
transformation tools available, the Group’s management
can update strategies and react to changes quickly in
highly competitive global markets. In FY2022, the Group
invested HK$20,102,000 (compared with HK$32,187,000
in FY2021) to purchase new injection moulding machines,
procure more high precision laboratory testing equipment
to upgrade our R&D and operational capabilities, hire
consultants to work on finance digital transformation to
enhance faster data processing and analysis, and to realize
a paperless finance operation. Part of the abovementioned
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capital expenditure was related to new R&D projects to
fulfill the minimum annual investment requirement of the
High Technology Venture; and we expect our investment in
these R&D projects will improve our operational efficiency,
which enables the Group’s management to make better
predictions and business decisions, and hopefully can
generate more sales revenue in 2023 from launch of new
products. Qualifying for the High Technology Venture status
will enable the Group to continue to enjoy lower profit tax
rate and to receive tax incentives from the PRC Government;
and increase our competitiveness among our peers.

Finally, the Group’s net profit in FY2022 was HK$30,504,000,
representing basic earnings per share of 6.09 Hong Kong
cents (net profit in FY2021 was HK$41,960,000, with basic
earnings per share of 8.41 Hong Kong cents).

On behalf of the board (the “Board”) of directors (the
“Directors”) of the Company, | would like to extend the
Board’s appreciation to all our staff for their hard work and
dedication throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.

WONG, Man Hin Raymond
Chairman
Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEF®R DM

FINANCIAL POSITION

The liquidity position of the Group was satisfactory. The
current ratio of the Group was 3.42 as of 31 December
2022, compared with 2.76 as of 31 December 2021. The
quick ratio of the Group was 2.46 as of 31 December 2022
(81 December 2021: 1.99). The gearing ratio of the Group
was 0.32 as of 31 December 2022 (31 December 2021:
0.42), which was computed by the trade and other payables
over total equity.

During FY2022, the Group’s trade receivables turnover
stood at 55 days, compared with 77 days in FY2021. The
inventory turnover in FY2022 was 78 days, compared with
64 days in FY2021.

Bank balances and cash were HK$334,379,000 as of 31
December 2022 (2021: HK$244,802,000), representing an
increase of HK$89,577,000 as compared to the figures in
the same period in FY2021, which was mainly due to lower
level of inventory and lower capital expenditure and R&D
expenditure. Better management of cash flow was due to
more accessible finance digital analytic tools to perform
analysis, therefore the Group’s management could make
better procurement and inventory control decisions.

There were no bank borrowings as of 31 December 2022
(2021: Nil).

The Group had no contingent liabilities as of 31 December
2022 (2021: Nil).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year, the capital structure of the Company has
not been changed with details shown in note 23(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has proposed a final dividend of 4 Hong Kong
cents per ordinary share for the year ended 31 December
2022 (the “2022 Final Dividend”) (2021: a final dividend of
4 Hong Kong cents per ordinary share). The proposed final
dividend, if approved by the shareholders at the forthcoming
annual general meeting, will be paid on Thursday, 8 June
2023 to the shareholders whose names appear on the
register of members of the Company on Tuesday, 30 May
2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of Members of the Company will be closed for
the following periods:

(1) For the purpose of determining shareholders who are
entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual
general meeting to be held on Friday, 19 May 2023 (the
“2023 AGM”) the register of members of the Company
will be closed from Monday, 15 May 2023 to Friday, 19
May 2023, both days inclusive. In order to be qualified
for attending and voting at the 2023 AGM, all transfer
documents, accompanied by the relevant share
certificates, should be lodged for registration with the
Company’s share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F.,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong
no later than 4:30 p.m. on Friday, 12 May 2023.

(2)  For the purpose of determining shareholders who
are entitled to the 2022 Final Dividend, the register
of members of the Company will be closed from
Thursday, 25 May 2023 to Tuesday, 30 May 2023,
both days inclusive. In order to be qualified for
the 2022 Final Dividend, all transfer documents,
accompanied by the relevant share certificates, should
be lodged for registration with the Company’s share
registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F., Hopewell Centre,
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong no later than 4:30
p.m. on Wednesday, 24 May 2023.

CHARGES ON ASSETS

The Group had no charges on assets as of 31 December
2022 (2021: Nil).

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

Most of the Group’s transactions were conducted in the
United States dollars, British Pound, Hong Kong dollars
and Renminbi. The Group does not foresee any substantial
exposure to foreign currency fluctuations and thus use of
financial instruments for exchange rate hedging purpose is
not considered.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEF®R DM

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS HELD, MATERIAL
ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES,
ASSOCIATESAND JOINTVENTURES

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not
have any significant investments, material acquisitions or
disposals of subsidiaries, associates or joint ventures during
the year ended 31 December 2022.

FUTURE PLANS FOR MATERIAL INVESTMENTS
AND CAPITAL ASSETS

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Group did not
have other plans for material investments or capital assets
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

FUTURE PROSPECTS

The impact of ongoing COVID-19 pandemic has drastically
impacted the operations and strategies of virtually all
organizations. The underlying economic and political
environment results in tremendous volatility and uncertainty
that may create significant risks to the business. The
Group’s management has performed a comprehensive risk
assessment and has contingency plans in place to handle
sudden supply chain disruption, economic uncertainties
and currencies volatility due to inflation and US Federal
Reserve policy, and the U-turn in COVID-19 pandemic policy
in the PRC. The Group’s management was glad that our
management team was able to allocate more time and more
human resources to tackle all the “unexpected” problems in
2022 with better resources allocation. Hopefully the Group’s
management can maintain the same agility and resilience to
tackle similar new challenges in 2023.

Despite there being a cloud of uncertainties surrounding
global trade, from unstable supply chain operations to lifting
of pandemic restrictions in the PRC and the ensuing snow-
balling infections at our Nansha factory in 2022, the Group
could still successfully extend new revenue stream from new
customers and launched higher valued-added new products
in 2022.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

The Group’s investment in R&D enables us to maintain the
HNTE status for the sixth consecutive year, and allows the
Group to use new knowledge, patents and innovations to
grow our business. The Group’s management will remain
resilient to tackle any immediate market downturns and
form stronger partnerships with our strategic customers and
suppliers. The Group will continue to invest and promote
computerization of manufacturing as well as finance
digital transformation. The adoption of digital technologies
requires new skills and significant efforts to upskill and reskill
existing employees. Ensuring privacy, identity management,
information security and system protection may require
significant resources to manage cyber threats. By scrutinizing
the entire end-to-end process, from understanding customer
needs to the delivery of finished products, the Group’s
management can address the entire value chain to open
up new business opportunities, make more efficient use of
working capital and better manage discretionary spending.
The Group’s management will also allocate more resources
in 2023 to implement better cybersecurity and hopefully
with external consultants’ advice, the Group’s IT system can
compete the 1ISO27001 certification which already started in
2022.

Finally, in the past three years, the COVID-19 pandemic
forced the Group’s management to make agile decisions
and change our strategies frequently to adopt to the
macroeconomic and geopolitical uncertainties, the
suspension of announcing and publishing the quarterly
financial results of the Group enabled the Group’s
management to concentrate on its principal business for
the best interests of the shareholders. Short-term metrics
during a stable macroeconomic environment can help the
Group prioritize decisions that will yield the most optimal
and attractive results. However, during uncertain time
period, such an approach will sacrifice valuable investment
opportunities to build a more stable global supply chain to
improve operational stability. The Group’s management was
glad that by reverting back to interim and annual reporting,
they were able to allocate more time and more human
resources to tackle all the "unexpected” problems in 2022.

BEEENWRDM

AEBEREHENIRESKEMEEE ST RS S FERIT
PEER - WHEAEEEMN BT AE  FF KB R
REMOER AEEERBEEMEMSRXEBESER
BESE  THARMANRBUERFREENELEEZEETMN
BIEBR - NEEBEERETREBIEEENRITE
IS LA - ARSI RMEEN R WASTEMHH
BEAZNREREAEEINREMBEIRE - BRE
- BHERE EELENZGRENJESTEAEER
REIBALE R o BB T AP FTREE G EHRE - 77
EPBERIRMANG  AEEERE N AREEEEAERE
VBRI MARTNEE  WEANEREEESRE
HEMERALREMIL - AEEEEE TR 2023 F
PRELZERIEANKL S RNHEEINTERNES
T AEERNEERINTELFA BB A 2022 FRAKBETH
ISO27001 7 °

B EBESF SRESEEAESEEEREED
BB - SR B R DA R B R B B R EOA
AR TBEM - EERAEEA R IR EBEE R
BLEAEAEEEEEE RN RET AR &
ERTR LR EBTHERGERE T - SHRIEET)
REBEEAE  BRBERBROLE - A - £
TREE SEEERSARRARY EBTERELENR
REORIREERE T R ARE - EEERELRBBNET
HREERE  SEEEFENIRESEENANER
SRR 2020 FF RIS [ 208 ) FIE -

FREBEEARAR —T-—FFH

9




10

Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEEF®R DM

STAFF

The Group currently employs approximately 27 Hong Kong
staff members and provides them with the Mandatory
Provident Fund Scheme. Our factory in the PRC employs
approximately 500 to 515 staff members, and workers
employed directly or indirectly approximately ranged
from 1,450 to 2,000 during the year ended 31 December
2022. Remuneration is determined by reference to their
qualifications, experiences and performances.

On behalf of the Board, | would like to extend the Board’s

appreciation to all our staff for their hard work and dedication
throughout the year ended 31 December 2022.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Dr. WONG, Man Hin Raymond (“Dr. Raymond
Wong”), aged 56, son of Dr. Wong, Kin Lae Wilson, was
appointed as a non-executive Director on 18 July 2001,
re-designated as an executive Director on 19 April 2002.
Dr. Raymond Wong became a deputy executive Chairman
since 19 April 2007. On 10 December 2021, he was re-
designated as the Chairman. He is also a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company. Dr. Raymond
Wong is also a director of Raymond Electric (China) Limited
and the chairman of Raymond (Panyu Nansha) Electrical
Manufacture Appliances Development Company Limited, all
of which are subsidiaries of the Company.

Dr. Raymond Wong holds a bachelor degree in chemical
engineering, a master degree in economics and a doctorate
degree in business administration. He is a member of
American Institute of Certified Public Accountants (CPA),
a Chartered Global Management Accountant (CGMA),
a Certified Management Accountant (CMA) and holds
a certificate in financial management (CFM). He is an
independent non-executive director of Modern Healthcare
Technology Holdings Limited (formerly Modern Beauty Salon
Holdings Limited) (stock code: 0919), Nan Nan Resources
Enterprise Limited (stock code: 1229), Tak Lee Machinery
Holdings Limited (stock code: 2102), and Guanze Medical
Information Industry (Holding) Co., Ltd. (stock code: 2427),
companies whose shares are listed on the Main Board of
the Stock Exchange. He was an independent non-executive
director of Zhejiang United Investment Holdings Group
Limited (stock code: 8366), a company listed on the GEM of
the Stock Exchange, until 9 March 2021.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

RAEEREREBEAEHN

Mr. WONG, Ying Man John (“Mr. John Wong”), aged 57,
was appointed as an executive Director on 15 September
1997. He has been appointed as the Vice-Chairman on
10 December 2021. He graduated from the University of
Manchester Institute of Science & Technology in 1987 and
joined the Company in the same year. He worked as an
engineer, project coordinator, engineering manager and
then general manager for operations. He is the General
Manager and a member of the remuneration committee
of the Company. Mr. John Wong is also a director of Mass
Top Corporation, Raymond Electric (China) Limited and
Raymond (Panyu Nansha) Electrical Manufacture Appliances
Development Company Limited, all of which are subsidiaries
of the Company.

Mr. MOK, Kin Hing (“Mr. Mok”), aged 59, was alternate
Director to Dr. Wong, Kin Lae Wilson, ex-Chairman and
executive Director of the Company until 1 July 2008
when he was appointed as an executive Director with
effect from 1 July 2008. Mr. Mok joined the Company
as a production planning coordinator in 1990. He was
appointed as a production manager in 1993 and general
manager of Raymond (Panyu Nansha) Electrical Appliances
Development Co. Ltd. in 1996. Mr. Mok is also a director
of Raymond Electric (China) Limited, a subsidiary of the
Company.

Dr. WONG, Kin Lae Wilson (“Dr. Wilson Wong”),
aged 87, was an executive Director and the Chairman
from 8 November 1984 to 10 December 2021. He was
re-designated as a non-executive Director and ceased to
be the Chairman with effect from 10 December 2021. In
1964, Dr. Wilson Wong founded the Company. In 1998,
he was awarded a honorary Doctor of Science from McGill
University in Canada. Dr. Wilson Wong is also a director
of Mass Top Corporation and Raymond (Panyu Nansha)
Electrical Manufacture Appliances Development Company
Limited, both of which are wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

Mr. WONG, Ying Kit David (“Mr. David Wong”), aged
59, was appointed a non-executive Director on 26 May
2014. Prior to his appointment as non-executive Director,
he was an alternate Director of the late Dr. Wong, Kin Hang
Philip (who was a non-executive Director) from 4 July 2008
to 26 May 2014. Mr. Wong is a Registered Architect and
Authorized Person in Hong Kong. He is also a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Architects. Mr. Wong is the
founder and executive director of Hong Kong Wine Vault.

Mr. XIONG, Zhengfeng (“Mr. Xiong”), aged 53, was
appointed as a non-executive Director on 3 January 2011.
Mr. Xiong graduated from the Department of Computer
Science of Nankai University and obtained his bachelor
degree in science in July 1992. He then obtained his master
degree in Economics from Nankai University School of
Economics in July 1995. Mr. Xiong is currently the chairman
and executive director of AKM Industrial Company Limited
(“AKM Industrial”), a company, for the privatization by
way of a scheme of arrangement, withdrawn the listing of
Shares (stock code: 1639) on the Stock Exchange with
effect from 9:00 a.m. on Tuesday, 28 July 2022, pursuant
to the approval of the Stock Exchange. He is a director of
Alpha Luck Industrial Limited (“Alpha Luck”), the substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of AKM
Industrial since March 2001 (Alpha Luck is AKM Industrial’s
beneficial owner). Mr. Xiong also serves as an executive
director of AKM Electronics Industrial (Panyu) Ltd. and AKM
Electronic Technology (Suzhou) Company Limited. He is the
chairman of AKM Meadville Electronics (Xiamen) Co., Ltd.
since December 2019.

Mr. LO, Kwong Shun Wilson (“Mr. Lo”), aged 49, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 1
January 2013. He is also the Chairman of the remuneration
committee and nomination committee of the Company, and
a member of the audit committee of the Company. He has
more than 20 years of working experience in investment
banking and advising on corporate finance. He is currently a
managing director of Caitong International Capital Company
Limited and independent non-executive director of Kingdom
Holdings Limited (stock code: 0528), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange. He also has many
years of experience in the field of auditing and accounting.
He is a member of the American Institute of CPA, a member
of Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountant and
a member of CFA Institute. Mr. Lo obtained his bachelor
of commerce degree from University of British Columbia in
1995.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management

RAEEREREBEAEHN

Ms. Ling, Kit Sum Imma (“Ms. Ling”), aged 68, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on
1 June 2020. She is also the Chairlady of the audit
committee of the Company, and a member of the
remuneration committee and nomination committee of the
Company. Ms. Ling is a Certified Public Accountant and
a retired assurance partner of PricewaterhouseCoopers.
She is also an independent non-executive director of Wise
Ally International Holdings Limited (stock code: 9918), EVA
Precision Industrial Holdings Limited (stock code: 0838),
and Arta TechFin Corporation Limited (stock code: 0279),
and was an independent non-executive director of Digital
Hollywood Interactive Limited (stock code: 2022) from
November 2017 to June 2021, all of which are listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange. Ms. Ling is a council
member and the treasurer of The Education University of
Hong Kong. She is also a council member of The Hong
Kong Federation of Youth Groups and an executive
committee member of the Hong Kong Youth Hostels
Association. Ms. Ling was appointed as an independent
manager of the incorporated management committee of Ng
Yuk Secondary School, an aided school, in February 2023.
She previously served as a member of the Appeal Board
Panel (Town Planning) (2016-2022), the Hospital Governing
Committee of the Hospital Authority (2015-2022), a board
member of the Estate Agents Authority (2015-2021) and
the Employees Compensation Assistance Fund Board
(2006-2012). Ms. Ling is a member of Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants, Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants, Chartered Professional Accountants
of Canada, and Chartered Institute of Management
Accountants. She is an accredited general mediator.

Dr. KO, Siu Fung Stephen (“Dr. Ko”), aged 60, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director on 1
October 2021. He is also a member of the audit committee,
the remuneration committee and the nomination committee
of the Company. Dr. Ko is a member of The Hong Kong
Institute of Directors and The Hong Kong Independent Non-
Executive Director Association. He advises international
technological companies’ executives and boards on scaling
up organisations to the next levels of business performance,
connectivity, innovation, and thus sustainability. His executive
career has spanned several decades and continents at
BASF and Linde Groups in materials, Stryker Corporation in
medical technologies and Aspen Technology Incorporated in
software. Dr. Ko holds a master’s degree in computer-aided
chemical engineering from University of Waterloo in Canada,
a master degree of business administration from Institut
Européen d’Administration des Affaires in France and a
doctorate degree in business administration from The Hong
Kong Polytechnic University.
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The Board has the pleasure to submit the annual report
together with the audited consolidated financial statements
of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong
and has its registered office and principal place of business
at Rooms 1801-1813, 18th Floor, Grandtech Centre, 8 On
Ping Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES & BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activity of the Company is sale of electrical
home appliances. The principal activities and other
particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

Further discussion and analysis of these activities as required
by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance, including a
discussion of the principal risks and uncertainties facing the
Group and an indication of likely future developments in the
Group’s business, can be found in the Chairman’s Statement
and Management Discussion and Analysis set out on pages
3 to 10 of this annual report. This discussion forms part of
the directors’ report.

Review on the Group’s business Pages 3t0 9
performance
— Analysis using financial Page 6
key performance indicators
Principal risks and uncertainties Pages 7t0 9
facing the Group
Future prospects of the Group Pages 8 to 9

note 26 to the
consolidated
financial statements

Financial risk management of the Group

The Company will publish its standalone Environmental,
Social and Governance Report for the year ended
31 December 2022 on the websites of the Stock
Exchange (http://www.hkexnews.hk) and the Company
(http://www.raymondfinance.com) in due course. Further
discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance and key relationships with employees,
customers, suppliers and others are also set out in the
Environmental, Social and Government Report.

CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 and the state of affairs of the Group as at that date are
set out in the consolidated financial statements on pages 60
to 143.
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Report of the Directors
EZERSE

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and the assets and liabilities of the
Group for the last five financial years is set out on page 144
of this annual report.

KEY RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Company maintains good relationships with its
employees by taking all practicable measures, including
but not limited to improving, reviewing and updating its
polices on remuneration and benefits, training, occupational
health and safety, to ensure that all the staff are reasonably
remunerated.

The Company is in good relationship with its customers
and is always improving its communication mechanism with
customers to ensure all the complaints or feedback from its
customers can be informed by the Company in time and the
customers receive service of high quality.

The Company maintains long-term good cooperation with
its domestic and overseas suppliers, which are of good
reputation in the industry.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of revenues from sales of goods and
purchases attributable to the Group’s major customers and
suppliers during the financial year are as follows:

SEMBRE

REEBRESEMBFE XENEEABHESNEFR
F144H -

BHES  FFRHEB2EERE

ARFPRBERR— A THRGEELERRA RFBEE - %
FREBERENRMES - BEAREHFM - BF - 15
Al BERENLZE2EER  UBERMEEIEGTSER
B

ARPRFBEZPHRFBAE Y —ERNIREFEREP
BB RS - DAL HERA R BRE R AR PR AR
SR - WHEPREESSMEMRE

ARRIETERAZFERFBENBENIMIERARTRYR
MAVFRER -

TREFRHER

AEBEZTZHERMELEASEEFE 2 RBEKLHE
EEMNRAZBDLIT

Percentage of
the Group’s total
rEEzEHBESE

Revenue from

sales of goods Purchases
HEERPKA AR
The largest customer BAEP 29.30% N/ATiERA
Five largest customers in aggregate ~ A AEP AT 86.73% N/A N F
The largest supplier BAHLIER N/A g 23.45%
Five largest suppliers in aggregate AAREEEEET N/A @ 35.51%

None of directors, their associates or any shareholders of
the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors, own
more than 5% of the Company’s issued shares) had any
interest in these major customers and suppliers during the
year ended 31 December 2022.
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RECOMMENDED DIVIDEND

An interim dividend of 2 Hong Kong cents per ordinary share
was paid for the six months ended 30 June 2022 (2021: 2
Hong Kong cents per ordinary share). The Board proposed
a final dividend of 4 Hong Kong cents per ordinary share
(2021: a final dividend of 4 Hong Kong cents per ordinary
share) in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022.

ISSUED SHARES

Details of the movements in the issued shares of the
Company during the year are set out in note 23(a) to the
consolidated financial statements.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company
during the year are set out in note 30(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries has
purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s shares
during the year ended 31 December 2022.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of
this report are:

Executive Directors:

Dr. WONG, Man Hin Raymond (Chairman)
Mr. WONG, Ying Man John (Vice-Chairman)
Mr. MOK, Kin Hing

Non-Executive Directors:
Dr. WONG, Kin Lae Wilson

Mr. XIONG, Zhengfeng

Mr. WONG, Ying Kit David

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Ms. LING, Kit Sum Imma

Mr. LO, Kwong Shun Wilson

Dr. KO, Siu Fung Stephen
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During the year and up to the date of this report, Dr. WONG,
Man Hin Raymond, Mr. WONG, Ying Man John, Mr. MOK,
Kin Hing and Dr. WONG, Kin Lae Wilson, are also directors
in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Ms. LUK, Yin Yee is
also a director of the Company’s subsidiaries during the year
and up to the date of this report.

In accordance with article 112 of the Articles of Association,
at each annual general meeting one-third of the Directors
for the time being or if their number is not three or a multiple
of three then the number nearest one-third shall retire
from office. Mr. MOK, Kin Hing, Mr. WONG, Ying Kit David
and Ms. LING, Kit Sum Imma will retire from the Board by
rotation at the forthcoming 2023 AGM.

Mr. MOK, Kin Hing, Mr. WONG, Ying Kit David and
Ms. LING, Kit Sum Imma shall be eligible and will offer
themselves for re-election at the 2023 AGM.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at
2023 AGM has a service contract with the Company or
its subsidiaries which is not determinable by the Company
within one year without payment of compensation (other
than statutory compensation).

The non-executive Directors do not have specific terms
of appointment but are subject to retirement by rotation in
accordance with the Articles of Association.

Biographical details of the Directors and the senior

management of the Group are set out on pages 11 to 14 of
this annual report.

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. Annual Report 2022

BEXEBL BRALE RREEELERFZNEL RN
REARBEARFHRNNE 2 ARARBZETHERRZ
EX -RAFERBEARSEY  EREXLITASAR
AMBARIZES -

REBEABERAINE H2EN0HRTE - REERBFASLE
H=n2z—EF(AMEFABRAIF=k=2FH - AIRK
BO=02— 2 N8 ERME - BRFSEE - JREXER
BOROR TR REE 2023 FRIBF ARG L#wmESIK -

Rig@sfst  |FRERERZEROXEIHTEER LR
BR2023 FRIRBEF RS LEEEL -

BER2023FBRAFAE LBERECEFTHREAR
AR EMBARREMN AR —FARNEEZREA
# CEEMERRIN) MR LEZ IRFEE L]

FUTESREBENERHR - EARBASEIERE
R

REBEENSREEENEREFFHANAFHRE N E14
Ho



CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE

The Company has received from each of the independent
non-executive Directors an annual confirmation of
independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and
considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, the interests of the Directors
in the shares of the Company, its subsidiaries and other
associated corporations (within the meaning of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO”)) as recorded in the
register maintained by the Company under Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules were
as follows:
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND EERAAR B RABBERMPER (&)
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

() Interests in issued shares () BITROER
Number of shares
Rip#E
% of total
Issued
Personal Family  Corporate Share Shares
Capacity Interests  Interests Interests Options Total AFCET
5% fEAEE FEEE  EEER fBiE Bt ROESE
(Note 1) (Note 6) (Note 7)
(MizE1) (Mizt6) (MizE7)
Executive Directors
HiTEEF
Dr. WONG, Man Hin Raymond Beneficial owner 6,427,972 10,100,000 - - 16,627,972 3.30%
BENEEL and interest of spouse (Note 2)
EaE AREBNER (MzE2)
Mr. WONG, Ying Man John Beneficial owner 58,845,136 - - - 58,845,136 11.74%
BRGUEAE ERBEA (Note 3)
(MzE3)
Mr. MOK; Kin Hing Beneficial owner 2,825,000 - - - 2,825,000 0.56%
RpRLE ERBAA
Non-Executive Directors
FHTEF
Dr. WONG, Kin Lae Wilson Interest of spouse & interest - 150,000 107,198,981 - 107,348,981 21.42%
ERMELT of a controlled corporation (Note 4) (Note 5)
BB R R A BN R (MizE4) (zE5)
Mr. WONG, Ying Kit David Beneficial owner 1,350,000 - - - 1,350,000 0.27%
BREGRE ERBAA
Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUHHTEE
Mr. LO, Kwong Shun Wilson Beneficial owner 300,000 - - - 300,000 0.06%

BERRE

EaBAA
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

(i)  Interests in issued shares (Continued)
Notes:

(1) The shares are registered under the names of the Directors
who are the beneficial shareholders.

(2)  Dr. WONG, Man Hin Raymond sold 10,000,000 shares to his
spouse, Ms. WONG, Hui Ting Zaneta (“Mrs. WONG”) on 20
June 2022. Mrs. WONG is accordingly the beneficial owner
of an aggregate of 10,100,000 shares as at 31 December
2022.

(8  Mr. WONG, Ying Man John acquired 40,119,688 shares
from Ho Kit Man Inc. and 86,000 shares from Sunnydale
Enterprises Holdings Limited on 20 May 2022 and 30 May
2022, respectively.

(4) Ms. SUN, Kwing Hai Amelia, spouse of Dr. WONG, Kin Lae
Wilson, is the beneficial shareholder.

5) Dr. WONG, Kin Lae Wilson is the beneficial shareholder of
91.7% of the issued shares of Diamond-Harvest Limited,
which owned 107,198,981 shares in the Company.

6) Share options are granted to the Directors under the Scheme
approved by the shareholders at an extraordinary general
meeting on 6 June 2003, details of which are set out in the
section “Share Option Scheme” below. The scheme was
terminated on 5 June 2013. The share options granted to Mr.
XIONG, Zhengfeng were lapsed on 19 July 2022.

(7)  The percentage was compiled based on the total number
of issued shares of the Company (i.e. 501,324,860 ordinary
shares) as at 31 December 2022.

All the interests disclosed under this section represent long
positions in the shares.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

(i)  Interests in underlying shares

Apart from as disclosed under the section headed “Share
Option Scheme” below, none of the Directors or any of
their spouses or children under eighteen years of age
has interests or short positions in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company, or any of its holding
company, subsidiaries or other associated corporations, as
recorded in the register required to be kept under section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and
the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Other than the share option schemes of the Company as
disclosed below, no equity-linked agreements that will or
may result in the Company issuing shares or that require
the Company to enter into any agreements that will or may
result in the Company issuing shares were entered into by
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2022 or
subsisted at the end of the year ended 31 December 2022.

Particulars of the share option schemes are set out in note

22 to the consolidated financial statements and the following
paragraphs.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Share options are granted to the Directors, employees
and other eligible participants specified under the Scheme
approved by shareholders of the Company at the
extraordinary general meeting on 6 June 2003. The Scheme
was terminated on 5 June 2013. All share options under
the Scheme were lapsed on 19 July 2022. Details of the
Scheme are as follows:

Purpose To give eligible participants incentives or
rewards for their contribution or potential
contribution to the Group

Participants (i

=

Directors, employees of any member
of the Group or any controlling
shar eholder of the Company
(“Controlling Shareholder”) or any
company controlled by a Controlling
Shareholder,

(i Holder of any securities issued
by any member of the Group or
any Controlling Shareholder of the
Company or any company controlled
by a Controlling Shareholder,

(iii) (@) any business or joint venture

partner, contractor, agent or

representative of,

(b) any supplier of goods or
services to, or

(c) any customer or distributor of
goods or services of,

Any member of the Group or any Controlling
Shareholder or a company controlled by a
Controlling Shareholder;

and for the purpose of the Scheme, shall
include any company controlled by one or
more persons belonging to any of the above
classes of persons
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EFEHG

SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Total number of
ordinary shares
available for issue
and the percentage
of the issued share
capital that it
represents as at
the date of this
annual report

Maximum entitlement
of each participant

Period within which
the securities must
be taken up under
an option

Minimum period for
which an option

must be held before

it can be exercised

Amount payable on
acceptance of
the option

Period within which
payments must
be made

Basis of determining
the exercise price

The remaining life of
the Scheme

1,450,000 ordinary shares and
0.29% of the issued share capital

1% of the aggregate number of
ordinary shares in issue in any
12-month period up to the date of
grant

Within a maximum period of 10
years commencing from the date
of grant of such options

Not applicable

HK$1.00 for each lot of share
options granted

21 days from the date of the offer

The higher of (i) the closing price
of the shares on the offer date or
(i) the average closing price of
the shares for the 5 trading days
immediately preceding the offer
of the option, provided that the
exercise price is not less than the
nominal value of the share

The Scheme shall remain in force
until 5 June 2013 unless otherwise
terminated in accordance with the
terms of the Scheme
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued) RS (@)
As at 31 December 2022, the Directors, employees and #2022 12 A31H > £= - EE R HMIEA L HER

other participants had the following interests in options to ~ #EHF#B LA THE%z= - ZEHERETIRIEBIRET SIS
subscribe for shares of the Company (market value per BEREREEE1TLRL - TRBEBARQB KRG (R2022F
share at 31 December 2022 was HK$0.78) which were 12 A31 A& MEABEE0.7870) - BRI & FT -
granted for a consideration of HK$1 for each lot of options 3 BEAKERE T 158 ARENRIEE —RA A F) 2 ik

under the Scheme. The options are unlisted. Each option

gives the holder the right to subscribe for one ordinary share

of the Company.

No. of share options

RiEHR
Weighted
average
closing
Market price
value immediately
per share  before the
Held at 1 Granted Lapsed  Exercised Outstanding Period atdate  date of
January during during during atthe during which  Exercise of grant  exercise
2022 the year the year the year year end options are price per  of options* 2%
R02E RER RER RER  RERH  Date exercisable share  RERE TERH
1A1A Rtz i A EiEz  AfTEZ  granted BRETTR 8 RHAHZ ZAKME
&% EREZR BRENE BRESE EREZR HEinE kil e SRHE* PHYHE
HKS HKS HKS
A ik ik
Non-Executive Director:
HHTEE
Mr. XIONG, Zhengfeng 1,200,000 - (1,200,000 - - 20Juy2012 20 July 2012 to 0690 0.690 -
RIEESE 19 uly 2022
1277208 2012874208%
202257 F198
Employees 250,000 - (125,000 (125,000 - 20July2012 20 July 2012 to 0690 0.690 1.185
] 19.July 2022
N1FTANA N12ETFNAZ
02%7F198
1,450,000 - (1,325,000 (125,000 -
Notes: Btk -

The options granted to the Directors are registered under the names ~ HTEEZERETIARNAEREBEAZEEZAEER -
of the Directors who are the beneficial owners.

*

Being the weighted average closing price of the Company’s ~ * BVARARE AR B RS H T (WER) BEIRI 2
ordinary shares immediately before the dates on which the g TE -
options were granted or exercised (as the case may be).

Information on the accounting policy for the options granted X BEEMRE 2 @t B R LSO BERENEFESEZER D
and the weighted average value per option is provided — RIEiA4RA BT IRE M s 4(q) R Misr22 -

in note 4(q) and note 22 to the consolidated financial

statements respectively.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Continued)

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the year ended
31 December 2022 was the Company, or any of its holding
company, subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the
Company or any other body corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2022, according to the register of
members kept by the Company pursuant to section 336 of
the SFO and so far as is known to, or can be ascertained
after reasonable enquiry by the Directors, the following
persons/entities, other than a Director, had an interest in the
shares and underlying shares of the Company which would
fall to be disclosed to the Company under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO:

BRESTE (@)

B FXOREE  REE2022%F12 A31 B IEFEREM
BEfE - AR HEMIZERAR - WEBARSKRERNE A
A IEAMREEAEE AR R ST HE BBk E
FiEm s FARBH @S2 T2 T8 -

FTERRREADFZRGREERD 2 EE

R2022FE 12 A31 B @ RARQ TR E 5 50 5 336 1648
TEEFEZBRRELM  MESEELARERNEATNSE
R THAL/ BRE(TEEES) RAR RN RAERK

{5k P 1R U5 B A 55 XV D55 2 2 8 S BB B 2 A
58 2 2 ¢

Number of shares
RpEE
% of total
issued
Registered Corporate Family Total shares
Capacity shareholders interests interest BIEER BETRT
54 BRTRR EEER FEEE ROBEHE OERES
(Note 5)
(Fi5E5)
Substantial shareholders
TERR
Ms. SUN, Kwing Hai Amelia Beneficial owner & 150,000 107,198,981 - 107,348,981 21.41%
ezt interest of spouse (Note 1)
BRE ARBENER (FzE1)
Diamond-Harvest Limited Beneficial owner 107,198,981 - - 107,198,981 21.38%
ExBEAA (Note 1)
GER))
Mr. WONG, Ying Man John Beneficial owner 58,845,136 - - 58,845,136 11.74%
ERELE ERBEEA (Note 2)
(Fisx2)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN FTERFERARA T 2RO RIEERMGD 2 EH

SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued) (&)
Number of shares
RpEE
% of total
issued
Registered Corporate Family Total shares
Capacity shareholders interests interest B EER BETRT
54 BRTRR EEER FEEE ROBEHE OERES
(Note 5)
(F¥zE5)
Alpha Luck Industrial Limited Beneficial owner 53,080,800 - - 53,080,800 10.59%
ZREXBRAA EREEA (Note 3)
(F5E3)
China North Industries Corp. Interest of controlled - 53,080,800 - 53,080,800 10.59%
FEIE A TEERAF corporation (Note 3)
NG e lsopE oy LX)
China North Industries Group Interest of controlled - 53,080,800 - 53,080,800 10.59%
Corporation Ltd. corporations (Note 3)
FEEETXEEER AR IR EHI AR MR LX)
China South Industries Group Interest of controlled - 53,080,800 - 53,080,800 10.59%
Corporation corporations (Note 3)
FEEEREEEERAR IR EHI AR MR LX)
Mr. David Michael WEBB Beneficial owner 13,137,345 21,477,655 - 34,615,000 6.90%
(“‘Mr. WEBB’) &interest of a (Note 4)
([WEBB%4£)) controlled corporation (HizE4)
ERBEAR
R EER R
FREBEEARAR —T-—FFH
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Continued)

Notes:

(1) 107,198,981 shares of the Company were held through
Diamond-Harvest Limited. Ms. SUN, Kwing Hai Amelia
and her spouse, Dr. WONG, Kin Lae Wilson hold 8.3% and
91.7% of the issued shares of Diamond-Harvest Limited,
respectively.

2 Mr. WONG, Ying Man John acquired 40,119,688 shares
from Ho Kit Man Inc. and 86,000 shares from Sunnydale
Enterprises Holdings Limited on 20 May 2022 and 30 May
2022, respectively. He holds 18,639,448 shares prior to the
above acquisitions.

) Alpha Luck Industrial Company Limited is wholly and
beneficially owned by China North Industries Corp. China
North Industries Corp. is owned as to 37.54% by China
South Industries Group Corporation and 56.70% owned by
China North Industries Group Corporation Ltd.. The above
companies are wholly owned by BB EEEEEEE
@ . Therefore, China North Industries Group Corporation
Ltd, China South Industries Group Corporation, China
North Industries Corp and Bl ftBI B EEEIREZE g are
deemed to be interested in the 53,080,800 shares of the
Company held by Alpha Luck Industrial Company Limited.

(4) The number of shares disclosed was based on the latest
disclosure of interest form filed on 5 August 2020 (the date
of relevant event be 31 July 2020) received from Mr. WEBB.
According to the filed form, Mr. WEBB beneficially owned
18,137,345 shares of the Company and 21,477,655 shares
of the Company were held through Preferable Situation
Assets Limited, a company wholly-owned by Mr. WEBB.

5) The percentage was compiled based on the total number

of issued shares of the Company (i.e. 501,324,860 ordinary
shares) as at 31 December 2022.

All the interests disclosed under this section represent long
positions in the shares of the Company.
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INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision (as defined in section 469
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance) for the benefit of
the directors of the Company is currently in force and was
in force throughout this year. The Company has purchased
suitable insurances for the Directors with respect to their
possible legal proceedings.

DIRECTORS’ INTEREST IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENT OR CONTRACTS

Except for the transactions disclosed in note 27(b) to
the consolidated financial statements, no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance subsisted during
or at the end of the year in which the Director or an entity
connected with the Director is or was materially interested,
either directly or indirectly during the year ended 31
December 2022.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN THE BUSINESS
COMPETING WITH THE COMPANY

The Directors have no interest in the business that is
competing with the Company during the year.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries was a
party to any arrangements to enable the Directors to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate at
any time during the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against
such rights under the laws of Hong Kong, which would
oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis
to its existing shareholders.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No substantial contracts concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the
business of the Group were entered into or existed during
the year.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Significant related party transactions entered into by the
Group during the year ended 31 December 2022, which
do not constitute connected transactions under the Listing
Rules are disclosed in note 27(b) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, there is no related party
transaction set out in note 27(b) to the consolidated financial
statements which fall into the category of connected
transactions or continuing connected transactions under
the Listing Rules. The Company has complied with the
requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules with
respect to the connected transaction.

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
which covers all of the Group’s employees. Particulars of
these retirement schemes are set out in note 20 to the
consolidated financial statements.

CHARITABLE DONATIONS

Charitable donations made by the Group during the year
ended 31 December 2022 amounted to approximately
HK$1,462,000 (2021: NIL).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES
During the year ended 31 December 2022, neither the

Company nor any of its subsidiaries has purchased, sold or
redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available and within
the knowledge of the Directors, as at the date of this annual
report, the Company has maintained the prescribed public
float under the Listing Rules.
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AUDITORS

Messrs. Baker Tilly Hong Kong Ltd. has retired as the
auditors of the Company upon expiration of its term of office
at the close of the annual general meeting of the Company
held on 22 May 2020. RSM Hong Kong (“RSM”) has been
appointed as the auditors of the Company with effect from
1 June 2020. Save as disclosed above, there have been no
other changes of auditors in the past three years.

The consolidated financial statement’s have been audited by
RSM who retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment. A resolution for the re-appointment of RSM will
be proposed at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

By Order of the Board

WONG, Man Hin Raymond
Chairman

Hong Kong, 24 March 2023
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Corporate Governance Report
ERERES

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company puts great emphasis on corporate
governance by reviewing and strengthening corporate
governance measures from time to time. The Board believes
that shareholders can derive maximum benefits from good
corporate governance.

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2022, the
Company was in compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code (version up to 31 December 2022) (the
“CG Code”) as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board comprises three executive Directors, three non-
executive Directors, and three independent non-executive
Directors listed as follows:

Executive Directors:

Dr. WONG, Man Hin Raymond (Chairman)
Mr. WONG, Ying Man John (Vice-Chairman)
Mr. MOK, Kin Hing

Non-Executive Directors:
Dr. WONG, Kin Lae Wilson

Mr. XIONG, Zhengfeng

Mr. WONG, Ying Kit David

Independent Non-Executive Directors:
Ms. LING, Kit Sum Imma

Mr. LO, Kwong Shun Wilson

Dr. KO, Siu Fung Stephen

The appointment of Directors is not fixed for a specified
term, but they are subject to the retirement and re-
election requirements at every annual general meeting
pursuant to the Articles of Association. Each of the non-
executive Directors (including the INEDs) is appointed for an
unspecified term.

All INEDs have complied with the requirements of the
Listing Rules and have submitted to the Company annual
confirmation of independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their independence
and confirms that all of them are independent parties as
defined in the Listing Rules. Mr. LO, Kwong Shun Wilson
was appointed on 1 January 2013, Ms. LING, Kit Sum
Imma was appointed on 1 June 2020 and Dr. KO, Siu Fung
Stephen was appointed on 1 October 2021.
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The family relationship among the Directors is summarized
as follows:

Dr. WONG, Man Hin Raymond is the son of Dr. WONG, Kin
Lae Wilson and cousin of Mr. WONG, Ying Man John and
Mr. WONG, Ying Kit David.

Mr. WONG, Ying Man John and Mr. WONG, Ying Kit David
are brothers. They are cousins of Dr. WONG, Man Hin
Raymond and nephews of Dr. Wong, Kin Lae Wilson.

Dr. WONG, Kin Lae Wilson is the father of Dr. WONG, Man
Hin Raymond and uncle of Mr. WONG, Ying Man John and
Mr. WONG, Ying Kit David.

The Directors have conducted a review of the effectiveness
of the system of internal control of the Company and its
subsidiaries.

The Board convenes at least four regular meetings each
year, and will convene further meetings when necessary.
When a regular Board meeting is convened, the Board
documents will be sent to the Directors for review before
the meeting pursuant to the Listing Rules and the CG Code
so that the Directors can keep abreast of the information
to perform their duties and responsibilities. The Board
convened 4 meetings during FY2022.
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The attendance of directors is as follows: BEEHEBEROT :
No. of Board No. of general
meetings attended/ meetings attended/
eligible to attend eligible to attend
HEESEERE Attendance HERRAS Attendance
Name of Directors RE/RER Rate RE/ HEER Rate
EZEB HEESEEENY ] HERRAERE il
Executive Directors HITEF
Dr. WONG, Man Hin Raymond BENEEL 4/4 100% 1 100%
(Chairman) (#)
Mr. WONG, Ying Man John BRESE 4/4 100% 1 100%
Mr. MOK; Kin Hing RE&ELE 4/4 100% 1 100%
Non-Executive Direciors FHTEE
Dr. WONG, Kin Lae Wison (Note 1)~ @& AIfE £ (FizE1) 474 100% 0/1 0%
Mr. XIONG, Zhengfeng (Note 2) FRIFE LA (it 2) 4/4 100% 0/1 0%
Mr. WONG, Ying Kit David BRGRE 4/4 100% 1 100%
Independient Non-Executive Directors BV HHi778%
Ms. LING, Kit Sum Imma ERLZT 4/4 100% 1 100%
Mr. LO, Kwong Shun Wison BRERE 4/4 100% 1 100%
Dr. KO, Siu Fung Stephen BLEET 4/4 100% 1 100%
Notes: BT
1. Due to the outbreak of COVID-19, Dr. WONG, Kin Lae 1. HRBERASEBEHNEE ZHABTRELERAARRN

Wilson, was unable to attend the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 20 May 2022 (“2022 AGM”) but the
Company is of the view that he is able to develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders by other means
of communication.

2. Due to the outbreak of COVID-19, Mr. XIONG, Zhengfeng
was unable to attend the 2022 AGM but the Company
is of the view that he is able to develop a balanced
understanding of the views of shareholders by other means
of communication.

The remuneration of the Directors is determined with
reference to their functions and responsibilities in the
Company, the performance of the Company and the current
market conditions. No Director is allowed to participate
in determining his own remuneration. The remuneration
received by Directors from the Company during FY2022 is
set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
The Board has set up an independent professional
consulting procedure and upon reasonable request, the
Directors are able to seek independent professional advice
in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expenses.

Apart from regular Board meetings, the Chairman also held
meeting with the INEDs without presence of other Directors
during FY2022.
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PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT OF
DIRECTORS

Pursuant to the CG Code, all Directors should participate in
continuous professional development to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills. All the Directors have participated
in continuous professional development, e.g. updated
Listing Rules training, to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills provided by the Group in FY2022. All Directors
were also provided with monthly updates on the Group’s
performance, position and prospects. All Directors have
provided the records of training they received in FY2022
to the Company. Details of the continuous professional
development participated by the Directors for FY2022 are
set out below:
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SENFEXHER - PIAEH EHRRNE - ABRNEH
SERHOMBMKEE - ERMAESRH T EREEZE
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WER 2022 R FEHZANEIIFCE - EEMN 2022 P KF
E2ENBETXERFBHINDOT -

Attending Reading
Director Name training sessions material
EEER SHMfHE REER
Executive Directors HITEE
Dr. WONG, Man Hin Raymond (Chairman) & XS+ (F/E) v v
Mr. WONG, Ying Man John mAHELE - v
Mr. MOK, Kin Hing RigmsfEsE - v
Non-Executive Directors IEHTEE
Dr. WONG, Kin Lae Wilson =HAE L - v
Mr. XIONG, Zhengfeng ARIFIE S - v
Mr. WONG, Ying Kit David mAAEEAE - v
Independent Non-Executive Directors HIIHITESE
Ms. LING, Kit Sum Imma RN v v
Mr. LO, Kwong Shun Wilson BERETE v/ v
Dr. KO, Siu Fung Stephen S 1w v/ v/
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ROLES OF THE BOARD AND MANAGEMENT

The Board is principally responsible for establishing the
development direction of the Group, formulating targets and
business development plans, approving major agreements
and matters, and monitoring the performances of senior
management. It is also responsible for corporate governance
with a view to enhance shareholders’ value. Led by the
three executive Directors, the management is responsible
for implementing the strategies and plans developed by the
Board.

The Company has developed a schedule of matters
reserved to the Board for decisions and has separately
identified those functions reserved to the Board. The Board
will review those arrangements on a regular basis to ensure
that the arrangements meet the needs of the Company.

ROLES AND DUTIES OF CHAIRMAN AND
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The Chairman and the chief executive officer have different
roles. The Chairman is responsible for the operation of
the Board and the chief executive officer is responsible
for managing the operations of the Group. Their functions
have been clearly divided to ensure a balanced distribution
of power and no authority will concentrate on a single
individual.

Dr. WONG, Man Hin Raymond, the Chairman of the Board,
an executive Director and the chief financial officer, is
principally responsible for leading the Board and ensures
the Board to act in the best interests of the Company. The
Chairman ensures that the Board to operate effectively
and perform its proper duties and discuss all important
and proper matters in a timely manner. The Chairman is
responsible for convening Board meetings, consulting,
determining and approving the agenda of each Board
meeting, and ensuring that Directors are provided sufficient
information on current matters in a timely manner. The
Chairman oversees the structure, number of members and
composition of the Board and makes recommendations
to the Board and the relevant committees on any intended
changes. The Chairman is also responsible for ensuring
that the Company formulates good corporate governance
practice and procedure.
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In addition, Dr. Raymond Wong is responsible for the Group’s
financial reporting, internal control, material procurement
and control, logistics, customs, taxes and legal matters
and compliance, coordinating close cooperation among
all departments, uniting efforts of staff and encouraging
the initiative of staff so as to ensure smooth and effective
operation of the Company’s operations and systems.

Mr. WONG, Ying Man John, the Vice-Chairman, an executive
Director and the chief executive officer, is principally
responsible for the daily operation and management of the
Group’s overall operations and implementing the Board’s
operating strategy and policy and delegating tasks to
all departments for implementation so as to realize the
Board’s objectives and decisions. In addition, he is also
responsible for research & development, production, quality
assurance and new product innovations, coordinating
close cooperation among all departments, uniting efforts of
staff and encouraging the initiative of staff so as to ensure
smooth and effective operation of the Company’s operations
and systems.

Mr. MOK, Kin Hing, an executive Director and the chief
operating officer, is principally responsible for the daily
operation and management of the Group’s overall
operations and implementing the Board’s operating strategy
and policy and delegating tasks to all departments for
implementation so as to realize the Board’s objectives and
decisions. In addition, he is also responsible for supervising
all personnel issues at our Nansha production facilities, all
capital equipments installation and disposal, and overseeing
all employee champions programs to optimize costs and
make sure our facilities are in full compliance with local,
international and environment laws and standards.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE

The Company’s corporate governance structure includes
the Board and three committees under the Board, namely
audit committee, remuneration committee and nomination
committee. The Board stipulates the terms of reference for
all committees in writing and specifies clearly the power and
responsibilities of the committees.
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The Board is also collectively responsible for performing the
corporate governance duties as set out in the CG Code,
which include:

(i) developing and reviewing the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(i)  reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

(i)  reviewing and monitoring the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(iv)  developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of
conduct applicable to employees and directors; and

(v reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG
Code and disclosure in the Corporate Governance
Report.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The audit committee of the Company (the “Audit
Committee”) currently comprises three INEDs, at least
one of them have appropriate professional qualifications
or accounting or related financial management expertise,
namely Ms. LING, Kit Sum Imma (chairlady), Mr. LO, Kwong
Shun Wilson and Dr. KO, Siu Fung Stephen. The Audit
Committee was established with specific written terms of
reference, mainly responsible for reviewing the consolidated
financial statements and annual and interim reports and
accounts of the Company, submitting relevant reports and
recommendations to the Board, reviewing the Company’s
financial controls, internal control and risk management
systems and making recommendations on the appointment
and remuneration of the auditors of the Company and any
matters relating to the termination of appointment. The
chairlady of the Audit Committee and is responsible for
reporting the results and recommendations of the Audit
Committee to the Board after each meeting.
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During FY2022, the Audit Committee convened 2 meetings.
Members of the audit committee and their attendance are
as follows:
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R202MBFE - BB AR2RE®E - EXEE
SRENMELFEERAT :

No. of meetings

attended/
eligible to attend Attendance
Name of Members HESERE Rate
REEHE EERHEERRE HE R
Ms. LING, Kit Sum Imma (Chairladly) ERONETE(FE) 2/2 100%
Mr. LO, Kwong Shun Wilson BEETE 2/2 100%
Dr. KO, Siu Fung Stephen [SE0S Al 2/2 100%

Tasks undertaken by the Audit Committee during the
year included reviewing the audited consolidated financial
statements and the annual results announcement for the
year ended 31 December 2021, reviewing the interim
report and the interim results announcement for the six
months ended 30 June 2022, considering the accounting
standards adopted, reviewing the explanatory letter about
audit submitted by the auditors to the management and
the response of the management, the basis of opinion and
qualified opinion (if any) made by the auditors in their report.

ERZEREFENMMN TEBRERERELL2021512 A
31 AZBERGEMBHRERRFEXERTE  EHEE2022
6 A30 B 6{EARNTMMmE RPREERE - ZEARR
VERHER BHARBEMIEREREENEZBENHA R
LREREDE ZBMEERESEMENELELERRE
BER(MA)EFE-
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The remuneration committee of the Company (the
“Remuneration Committee”) currently comprises three
INEDs, namely Mr. LO, Kwong Shun Wilson (chairman), Ms.
LING, Kit Sum Imma and Dr. KO, Siu Fung Stephen and two
executive Directors, namely Dr. WONG, Man Hin Raymond
and Mr. WONG, Ying Man John. The Remuneration
Committee was established with specific written terms of
reference, principally responsible for reviewing and approving
remuneration plans for Directors and senior management,
determining the remuneration package of executive
Directors and senior management, including benefits,
pension interests and the payment of compensation. The
Remuneration Committee should consider factors such as
salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment
and responsibilities of the Directors, employment conditions
elsewhere in the Group and desirability of performance-
based remuneration. The chairman of the Remuneration
Committee is responsible for reporting the meeting results
and recommendations of the Remuneration Committee to
the Board after each meeting.

The Remuneration Committee has adopted the
model whereby the Remuneration Committee makes
recommendation to the Board on the remuneration
packages of executive Directors and senior management
and to make recommendation to the Board on the
remuneration of non-executive Directors and INEDs.

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. Annual Report 2022

FMEES
ARENFHEES ((HMEEE ) RAIBBELIFNTE
E(DHRERERLE(ZR)  ZRLZLESLEE L)
R2RBTER (DR AEXRE L NERHEL) AN -
YFNZBeCKUERBEIZA R MMAEEELS
REBABNFMIR BERATEERSNEEENT
irl o BN RS RS MEESN - HFHNEES
EURBRARAXNONEE EFNREAGEIET A%
B E A A PTR B R R A H M T BE S E R E ER
E-FHEZEENEIFRENEBRERRABEFEREH
WEZEeNEZERIEBER -

FNZ B RAMRTES NS REEABNFMETER
Exegs UFITESRRBUIFNTESNHNRA
EFERNEZENFHIEL -



During FY2022, the Remuneration Committee convened
1 meeting. Members of the Remuneration Committee and
their attendance are as follows:
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R202HBFE  HMEEEBRITIAEE - HHERE
SRERELFEBERNT :

No. of meetings

attended/

eligible to attend Attendance
Name of Members HESERE Rate
REEHE EERHEERRE HE=E
Mr. LO, Kwong Shun Wilson (Chairman) BB %% (F/E) 1/1 100%
Ms. LING, Kit Sum Imma ERLZ L 1/1 100%
Dr. KO, Siu Fung Stephen [SE0S Al 1/1 100%
Dr. WONG, Man Hin Raymond EXHEEL 1/1 100%
Mr. WONG, Ying Man John EHRHTE 1/1 100%

Tasks undertaken by the Remuneration Committee
during the year included reviewing the remuneration
structure, remuneration policy and bonus system of the
Group, assessing performance of executive Directors,
considering the salary adjustment for the year and
making recommendations to the Board and considering
remuneration of newly appointed Directors. The
Remuneration Committee also ensures that no Director or
senior management member determines his or her own
remuneration.

The remuneration policy of the Group is to determine the
remuneration of executive Directors and senior management
based on their responsibilities, qualifications and working
performance. No Director or any of his associates is involved
in deciding his own remuneration. Details of the remuneration
of the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2022 are
set out in note 10 to the consolidated financial statements.
Details of the five highest paid individual in the Group for the
year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 11 to the
consolidated financial statements.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an
incentive to the Directors, employees and other eligible
participants. Details of the share option scheme are set out
in the section headed “Share Option Scheme”.
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The nomination committee of the Company (the
“Nomination Committee”) currently comprise three
INEDs, namely Mr. LO, Kwong Shun Wilson (chairman), Ms.
LING, Kit Sum Imma and Dr. KO, Siu Fung Stephen. The
Nomination Committee is to deal with the appointment, re-
election and retirement of Directors.

The Company has adopted a nomination policy in January
2019. The nomination policy sets out the approach to
guide the Nomination Committee in relation to election,
appointment and re-appointment of Directors. It aims
to ensure the Board has a balance of skills, experience,
knowledge and diversity of the candidates.

The Nomination Committee considers that in terms of
professional experience, skills and knowledge and the
structure, size and composition of the Board, the present
members of the Board of the Company are generally in
line with the diversity policy of the Company concerning
board members, meeting the present situation and future
development plan of the Company.

During FY2022, the Nomination Committee convened 1
meeting. Members of the Nomination Committee and their
attendance are as follows:

REEEE

$27mh%£ﬁﬁﬁh%§5 DBRESBBUINTE
EHER - DB ABRBERE(ER)  BRLELRELE
Wt EEERRERESNEL  ERLAEHFE

NATER2019F 1 AELMIZZEE - T%%Bz”%ﬁﬁﬁé

BIREZZEeRER RINEHETEENHE-

FEREREZE B GEIRB AN &5 %ﬂ;&ﬂﬂmliﬁﬁ
S -

?m%éigﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁj BATNESKE  HtEXLR &

EMABREFTEZRE  ABREAKFITAERE - EX
f—rmﬁ AEZEZTEHE - FEARRIMEARARER
HE -

R2022MBEE - REZEGEET1AEH - RBEE
SXRENMELFEBERAT :

No. of meetings

attended/
eligible to attend Attendance
Name of Members HESRRE Rate
REEH SEREESELH i fE &
Mr. LO, Kwong Shun Wilson (Chairman) — B&E1{E 5% (£/E) 1/1 100%
Ms. LING, Kit Sum Imma /x/,\/uézi 1/1 100%
Dr. KO, Siu Fung Stephen (S i 1/1 100%
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NOMINATION OF DIRECTORS

Pursuant to article 95 of the Articles of Association, the
Board is entitled to appoint any person as Director from
time to time or at any time to fill a casual vacancy or add a
new member to the Board. For nomination, the nominee’s
qualifications, capabilities and potential to make contribution
to the Company shall be taken into consideration by the
nomination committee.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Board has adopted the board diversity policy (the
“Board Diversity Policy”) in January 2019 which sets out
all measurable objectives to achieve and maintain diversity
on the Board to enhance effectiveness of the Board. The
Company recognises and embraces the benefits of diversity
of Board. It endeavours to ensure that the Board has a
balance of skills, experiences and varying perspectives
appropriate for the Company’s business. All Board
appointments are made on a merit basis with due regard for
the benefits of diversity of the Board members. Selection of
candidates are based on a range of diversity perspectives,
including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills and knowledge. The Nomination Committee will review
the Board Diversity Policy on a regular basis to ensure its
continued effectiveness from time to time.
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The Board comprises Directors with a range of expertise
including chemical engineering, science and technologies,
corporate finance and accounting. The mix of the skills
and background of the Directors are appropriate taking
into account the business nature, corporate strategy and
structure of the Company. Besides, the Board is made
up of different age groups and both genders. The Board
considers that its current board composition is diversified
with appropriate balanced professional background, skills,
experience, gender and age. The following chart shows the
diversity profile of the Board as at 31 December 2022:

Number of Directors

ESAH™
9
g Female %zt
ED

7
6
5 Male

NED
4 B
3
2

INED
1
0

Gender Designation
Lzl (=84

ED — Executive Director
NED — Non-executive Director
INED — Independent Non-executive Director
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COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Liu Pui Yee (“Ms. Liu”) was appointed as the company
secretary of the Company on 9 February 2018. Ms. Liu is
responsible for ensuring that the Board is fully appraised of
the relevant corporate governance developments relating
to the Group and facilitating the professional development
of the directors. The Company engages an external service
provider to provide compliance and full range of company
secretarial services to the Company. The primary contact
person of the Company with Ms. Liu is Dr. WONG, Man Hin
Raymond, the Chairman of the Board, an executive Director
and the chief financial officer.

Ms. Liu has received no less than 15 hours relevant
professional training during FY2022.

SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its own code
of conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors
and established written guidelines no less exacting than the
Model Code for senior management and specified persons
who are likely to possess inside information in relation to the
Group.

Having made specific enquiry to the Directors, all the
Directors confirmed that they had complied with the required
standards as set out in the Model Code for the year ended
31 December 2022.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND
CONTROL

The Board is responsible for maintaining an adequate risk
management and internal control system to manage risks
on an ongoing basis to reasonably safeguard the interests
of the Company’s shareholders and the Group’s assets.
In addition, there is regular dialogue with the Group’s
internal and external auditors so that both are aware of the
significant factors which may affect their respective scope of
work.

INTERNAL
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The Board has approved an “Inside Information Policy” in
May 2013 with the aim to set out guidelines to the directors,
officers and all relevant employees of the Group to ensure
inside information of the Company is to be disseminated to
the public in equal and timely manner in accordance with
the applicable laws and regulations. The term “relevant
employee” refers to employee of the Group, because of his/
her office or employment, who is likely to be in possession
of the unpublished Inside Information.

The Board has also adopted an anti-fraud and anti-bribery
policy. Directors and senior management are responsible
for ensuring the effective implementation, monitoring and
investigating any material fraudulent or bribery activities
committed within the Group.

The Group’s risk management includes regular identification
and review of business risks and control measures to
mitigate such risks. The Group’s internal control system
comprises an established organizational structure as
well as comprehensive policies and standards. Area of
responsibilities of each business and functional unit is clearly
defined to ensure effective check and balance. Procedures
have been designed to safeguard assets from unauthorized
use or disposition, and to ensure that proper accounting
records are maintained and financial information used
internally and for publication is reliable. The internal control
procedures provide reasonable but not absolute assurance
against material errors, losses and fraud; but deem
sufficient to ensure full compliance with applicable laws and
regulations.

The Audit Committee and the Board carry out an
overview every six months on the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control system of the
Group. The review covers all material controls, including
financial, operational and risk controls. No material risk
management and internal control aspects of any significant
discrepancies were discovered during the review. Both the
Audit Committee and the Board expressed satisfaction over
the effectiveness and adequacy of both the internal control
procedures and risk management procedures for the year
under review.
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The Board has reviewed and discussed the Environmental,
Social and Governance Report of the Company at least
annually to access the management and control of the
risks in ESG. Further discussion on the risks related to
Environmental, Social and Governance are set out in the
separate Environment, Social and Governance Report.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility in preparing
the consolidated financial statements of the Group.

The finance department of the Company is managed by a
qualified staff and supervised by the Chairman and chief
financial officer, Dr. WONG, Man Hin Raymond, who is a
U.S. certified public accountant. With the assistance of
the finance department, the Board will ensure that the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements of the
Group complies with relevant regulations and applicable
accounting standards.

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

The remuneration in respect of audit and non-audit services
(including review of interim financial information and tax
services) for the year ended 31 December 2022 provided
by RSM Hong Kong and its affiliate were approximately
HK$750,000, and HK$150,000 respectively.

The statement of reporting responsibility issued by RSM
Hong Kong, the auditor of the Company, in respect of the
consolidated financial statements of the Group is set out in
the independent auditor’s report on pages 50 to 59.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company has maintained communication with its
shareholders through the annual general meeting or other
general meetings and encourages them to participate in general
meetings. Registered shareholders of the Company receive
notices of general meetings by post. The notice of general
meeting contains the agenda, the proposed resolutions and
the voting form. All shareholders of the Company are entitled
to attend the annual general meeting and extraordinary general
meetings of the Company. Shareholders who are unable to
attend the general meeting can fill in the proxy form attached
with the notice of general meeting and return the same to the
share registrar and transfer office of the Company so as to
appoint their representatives or the chairman of the meeting as
their proxies.
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The Board has adopted a shareholders’ communication
policy in May 2013 (the “Shareholders’ Communication
Policy”). Its general policy is to maintain on- going
dialogue with the Shareholders and investing community
and to ensure that shareholders’ views and concerns
are appropriately addressed. The Board reviewed the
communication activities with the shareholders during the
year ended 31 December 2022 and based on such review
was satisfied with the implementation and effectiveness of
the Shareholders’ Communication Policy.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

Right to convene an extraordinary general
meeting

Pursuant to article 68 of the Articles of Association, an
extraordinary general meeting shall be convened on
requisition as provided by the Companies Ordinance or by
the requisitionist. The Directors are required to call a general
meeting if the Company has received requests from the
Shareholders of the Company representing at least 5% of
the total voting rights of all the Shareholders having a right to
vote at general meetings.

Right to put enquiries to the Board

Shareholders have the right to put enquiries to the Board. All
enquiries can be in writing and sent for the attention of the
Board, in one of the following ways:

1. By Post Raymond Industrial Limited
Rooms 1801-1813, 18th floor,
Grandtech Centre,

8 On Ping Street,

Shatin, New Territories

Hong Kong

2. Byfacsimie (852) 2341 8669

3. By email ril@rilnk.com
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Procedures to put forward proposals at general
meetings

Shareholders who would like to put forward proposals at a
general meeting shall follow the procedures below.

Shareholders representing at least 2.5% of the total voting
rights of all the Shareholders who have a relevant right to
vote or at least 50 Shareholders who have a relevant right to
vote may request the Company to:

i) give notice of a resolution that may properly be moved
and is intended to be moved at the annual general
meeting of the Company; or

ii) circulate a statement of not more than 1,000 words
with respect to a matter mentioned in a proposed
resolution to be dealt with at a general meeting or
other business to be dealt with at the meeting;

to each Shareholder entitled to receive notice of the meeting.

A request to give notice of a resolution must be received by
the Company not later than (i) 6 weeks before the annual
general meeting to which the request relates; or (ii) if later,
the time at which notice is given of that meeting. A request
to circulate shareholders’ statement must be received by
the Company at least 7 days before the meeting to which it
relates. Such request may be sent to the Company in hard
copy form or in electronic form.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

There was no significant change in the constitutional
documents of the Company during FY2022.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a dividend policy in January 2019.
In proposing any dividend payout, the Board shall take
into account certain factors, including but not limited to
the Group’s expected and actual financial performance,
its retained earnings and distributable reserves, the
Group’s capacity from current and future operation, future
commitments at the time of declaration of dividend.

The dividend policy and the payment of future dividend are
subject to the Board’s continuing determination which would
be in the best interests of the Group and Shareholders and
are in compliance with all applicable laws and regulations.
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Independent auditor’s report to the members of
Raymond Industrial Limited
(Incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability)

Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements
of Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 60 to 143,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give
a true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2022, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“‘HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”)
and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
Companies Ordinance.

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants
(the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe
that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit
of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters. The key audit matters
we identified are:

Key Audit Matter

RREITER

1. Impairment of trade receivables

1. B 5 W ERFURIE

Independent Auditor’s Report
BB R &

BEETEH

MRES EREREBERMNFEAE - ERMAENBRELER
EMBHRRNETPREENFIER - ZFFTRERME &S
EMBHRTETEREA RS EREREERE - BAXL
TRl RIMRRE R - BPIEERNBRESAERS -

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BMANESNARERRETSE

AR A I HREN T4 R 17 »

Refer to notes 4(u) and 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had significant trade
receivables of HK$159,402,000 (2021: HK$301,224,000).
No impairment has been recognised during the year.
2022124310 - ESEEERE HRKEITBE
159,402,000 7T (2021 £ : % #301,224,0007T) « F A
mIERRE °

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment on
provision for loss allowances on trade receivables included:
BMEERERTEE S ERBRREERERRTNER
B

° We assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors including subjectivity.

Bf@BE RGN I EEEEENSEFEBME
I EL A [ A [ B (R 2R 9 /K S 2R AT Ak BB K 38 SR [E]
BRRE -

° We understood and evaluated management’s
key control over the assessment on recoverability
of trade receivable balances and the related loss
allowances, including periodic review on trade
receivables;

BT R ATEE R EHE SRR AR KD
MG RIS EREN TR - BEE SRR
B H IR
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

RRETEE

1. Impairment of trade receivables (Continued)

1. B5 W ARARE ()

BHRETSERGE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RANET N EERERETSE

BRI BRI F A R 17

Refer to notes 4(u) and 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Management applied judgement in assessing the expected
credit losses. Trade receivables relating to customers with
known financial difficulties or significant doubt on collection
are assessed individually for provision for expected credit
losses. Expected credit losses are estimated by grouping
the remaining trade receivables based on shared credit risk
characteristics and collectively assessed for likelihood of
recovery, taking into account the nature of the customers,
their geographical locations and their ageing categories,
and applying expected credit losses rates to the respective
gross carrying amounts of the trade receivables. The
expected credit losses rates are determined based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience with an adjustment
to reflect current and forward-looking information
which affected the ability of the customers to settle the
receivables.

ERELTHEREEEBRERE - HE NBEMEHE
HIHBRAEARBNT P EHENE S RUKEERTIsE
HEEEBBREEETERNMN - RREEEERIEE
HENEERBRSHE RGN E S RIBRTETHE - I
RATHMEKREIM AN RANZEEEFPHEE - BN E
NEREER - URBTEREEEBERXERANE S EUER
REBOIRELRE - HHEEEHEXRE SSENE
FEEEEBLRET  WETHAE  URMEZERFE
BRYWERREE N E AT AT L E XL -

o We evaluated the outcome of prior period
assessment of impairment of trade receivables
to assess the effectiveness of management’s
estimation process.

FAPIRT AL T AT HAE AR FORERT R O A5 R - ARTAR
EREHHBENBRIE -

o Checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy of trade
receivables aging used by management to estimate
the appropriate provision for loss allowances;
AR - E BB EREANE ZHRUGRTERR
EERE I A EHE R R B IR B
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

RRETEE

Independent Auditor’s Report
BB R &

BHRETSERGE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RANET N EERERETSE

1. Impairment of trade receivables (Continued)

1. BZ W ARARE ()

Refer to notes 4(u) and 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

BRI BRI F 4 17

The inherent risk in relation to the assessment of expected
credit losses on trade receivables is considered significant
as the impairment assessment involves significant
estimates and judgement which were subjective. Therefore,
we identified impairment of trade receivables as key audit
matter.

HASRER S R EBEE ARG - ERE 5 e
WHIEN A EE BB G IRENERRRERAR/EEXN
#) o Eitt - B RUERFORES R RS EE -

° Obtained management’s assessment on the

expected credit losses allowances of trade
receivables and assessed the reasonableness of
the expected loss rates. We corroborated and
validated management’s assessment based on
the historical settlement pattern, correspondences
with the customers, and evidences from external
sources including the relevant public search results
relating to the financial circumstances of the relevant
customers;
BISEEEHE SREKRFEREEEHEREDY
Al WEHE TR R RS IR o BFIER MER
& T ERENRG - DREBEELEMER - BHEF
BIB1E RANBAHRIRELR - BREEEBT PN
SRR A IR R

° We assessed management’s assessment of current
market conditions and forward-looking information
such as macroeconomic factors by comparing the
data used by management against publicly available
information; and
B EREEANBIREAREN  KeHHE
BREHENMSRARN AN EZEBKBEEZZAE
MEE R

o We checked the mathematical accuracy of
management’s calculations for loss allowances of
trade receivables.
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

RRETEE

2. Valuation of inventories

2. FEfEE

BHRETSERGE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RANET N EERERETSE

Refer to notes 4(e) and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

BRI A TR iE 4(e) X 16 »

The Group’s inventories were exposed to inventory
obsolete and excess risks as a result of the fast
technology innovation and macroeconomic challenges.
The determination of the provision amount is complex and
involves significant judgements and estimates because it
depends on the net realisable value of inventories.

MR AR AR R RSB S - ESENETFEER
R BFIER - BESENETEER  TREXHER
st - AAREURNFER A #IR)FE -

At 31 December 2022, the Group’s net inventories
amounted to HK$198,491,000 (2021: HK$219,518,000).
Inventory is carried in the consolidated financial statements
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. The net
realisable value of inventory could be impacted by changes
in economic conditions as well as changes in customers’
preferences and competitors’ strategies in responses to
changes in market conditions.

R2022%F12A31R EEBEMNGEEFERER
198,491,000 7T (2021 4 # # 219,518,000 7T ) © 17 E1E4R
B BmERF IR AR E A FIFEBEEIIR - FEHA
SRFEAEEZICBERR B ARE PRI RHEFEY
FRETSIMAE L RB T E -

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment
on net realisable value of inventories included:

P EREFEFEERFEMNTHOREF 2

° We assessed the inherent risk of material
misstatement by considering the degree of
estimation uncertainty and level of other inherent
risk factors including subjectivity;

Hf@BE BTN TIEEEREMEHMSHM
&5 bz A = AR PR A E AR E SRR

° We understood and evaluated managements key
controls over the assessment of the net realisable
value of inventories and related loss allowances
including periodic review on inventories;

BT RmAHEE R BT AT E R # R S E AN
MR AER (BEERFEER) NS

o We understood and evaluated the appropriateness

and consistency of the basis management used
in estimating the level of provision for inventories
by comparing the historical accuracy of inventory
provisioning, on a sample basis, to the realised
amount; and reviewing the level of inventory write-
offs;
BfEBAmMET R B EAEFEREEEES
REERNL - TR TEEREBEMETEREK
FRPERARIELE - A REBAFEMEKTHEE
MR
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Key Audit Matters (Continued)

Key Audit Matter

RRETEE

2. Valuation of inventories (Continued)

2. FEME (&)
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BHRETSERGE

How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
RANET N EERERETSE

Refer to notes 4(e) and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.

BRI A TR T 4(e) X 16 »

The inherent risk in relation to the assessment of the net
realisable value of inventories is considered significant as
the assessment of net realisable value involve significant
estimates and judgements which were subjective.
Therefore, we identified valuation of inventories as a key
audit matter.

A AT B IR R AR AP B B AR E B SHAAIET - Bt

At - B EEHERTEABRETFE -

° Compared the carrying amounts of a sample of

° Checked, on a sample basis, the accuracy of
inventory aging used by management to estimate
the appropriate provision for slow-moving and
obsolete inventories;

AR - B BB EREANTFERER ALGHE
HARR T B EE B A ERL

° Performed audit analytics on inventory holding and
movement data to identify products with indication
of slow-moving or obsolescence; and
HIHANGFENEHEURETEAIIT - ABRA
TSGR RNEmR &

inventories to their net realisable value through a
detailed review of sales subsequent to the year
end. Where there were no subsequent sales of
the respective products after the year end, we
challenged management as to the realisable value
of the products, corroborating explanations with
the aging, sales orders, historical margins and
marketability of the respective inventories, as
appropriate.

BBHAREFRENFEEBN - BT AEE
BERmMEERAETERFEETHER - HREFK
BABELNER  BACHEERAZZERN
AEREERDER  WEBKEK HETE B
EEMEXRERFENTS A HEN (WER) EE
HAREE -
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Other Information

The directors are responsible for the Other Information. The
Other Information comprises all of the information included
in the annual report other than the consolidated financial
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the Other Information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other
Information and, in doing so, consider whether the Other
Information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit
or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is
a material misstatement of this Other Information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

Responsibilities of Directors and Those Charged
with Governance for the Consolidated Financial
Statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
and the Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control
as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have
no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for
overseeing the Group’s financial reporting process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body, in
accordance with section 405 of the Companies Ordinance
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the
contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it
exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated
financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

° |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error,
as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

° Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

° Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

° Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

° Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence
regarding the financial information of the entities or
business activities within the Group to express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including
any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify
during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate
with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and
where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or
safeguards applied.
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From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of
most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key
audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s
report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated
in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Mr. Yam Tak Fai, Ronald.

RSM Hong Kong
Certified Public Accountants

24 March 2023

29th Floor, Lee Garden Two,
28 Yun Ping Road,
Causeway Bay, Hong Kong

Independent Auditor’s Report
BB R &
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss

(For the year ended 31 December 2022)
— = 22

REeEBEER

(B F20224F 12 A 31 A1FF/E)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABHREN)
2022 2021
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
FEE BET T BT T
Revenue L'ON 5 1,063,058 1,433,612
Cost of sales SHER AR (933,071) (1,261,281)
Gross profit EF 129,987 172,331
Other revenue EHblA 6 3,455 449
Other net income H by F e 6 9,438 2,272
Selling expenses HEER (12,350) (15,798)
General and administrative expenses ~ —#& N 1T E A (96,194) (111,982)
Profit before taxation BRBE A& 34,336 47,272
Income tax expense Frefisz 8 (3,832) (5,312)
Profit for the year attributable AN TR RIEL
to shareholders of the Company  REEZF 9 30,504 41,960
Earnings per share SREF 12
Basic, HK cents B - A 6.09 8.41
Diluted, HK cents g - B 6.09 8.39
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
(For the year ended 31 December 2022)

GEeEsRHEMEZEHKER
(BFE2022F 12 431 AIFF/Z)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABBREN)
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T BT T
Profit for the year attributable AR T RREGERFERT
to shareholders of the Company 30,504 41,960
Other comprehensive income Hih 2 mEUW
ltem that may be reclassified ZIERENFENERMNIER ¢
to profit or loss:
- Exchange differences on — BMEIBINEBIM B REREARE L Z5E
translation of financial
statements of foreign operations (25,475) 9,110
Total comprehensive income EARBRREMEAFE22ERREE
for the year attributable to
shareholders of the Company 5,029 51,070
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

(At 31 December 2022)
G BRI R
(2022 12 A31 HAEZE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

2022 2021
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
MIEE BT T BRI

Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Y - BB MG 13 132,498 155,983
Right-of-use assets FREEE 13 7,552 8,509
Deferred tax assets RS E 15 2,865 3,000
142,915 167,492

Current assets REEE
Inventories BB 16 198,491 219,518
Trade and other receivables E 5 R E A FEUARFR 17 178,355 324,399
Current tax assets BIHATR IR & & 14 - 664
Bank and cash balances RITMIRE 18 334,379 244,802
711,225 789,383
Current liabilities REBEE

Trade and other payables g 5 R HMER IR 19 206,918 283,234
Dividends payable FERTRR B, 351 322
Current tax liabilities BIHATRIB B E 14 846 2,326
208,115 285,882
Net current assets REBEEFE 503,110 503,501
Total assets less current liabilities RAEERREBEE 646,025 670,993

Non-current liabilities ERBEE
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIEAE 15 159 163
NET ASSETS EEFE 645,866 670,830

CAPITAL AND RESERVES BEXRRE
Share capital &N 23(a) 467,676 467,578
Reserves (ks 178,190 203,252
TOTAL EQUITY e 645,866 670,830

Approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2023 and

are signed on its behalf by:

WONG, Man Hin Raymond

EXE
Director

EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

(For the year ended 31 December 2022)

— 2L
GEERBEX
(B2 2022 12 F 31 HIFFE)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABBREN)
PRC
Share  Exchange Capital Retained statutory Total
capital reserve reserve earnings reserve equity
R& ELRE BAfE BERA TELERE AR
Mote 238)  (note 23(0)))  (note 23(c)i) (note 23(c)i)
(Hiz23@)  (HzE23(0))) (M 23(0)) (FzE 23(c) i)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mgk BETT BETT BETTT BETTT BETTT BETTT
At 1 January 2021 R2021 51810 &8 462,333 49,410 756 95,064 47,652 665,215
Changes in equity for 2021: 2021 £ 2 XS H
Profit for the year RERRA - - - 41,960 - 41,960
Exchange differences on translation &35 EH N KRR
of financial statements of EENELES
foreign operations - 9,110 - - - 9,110
Total comprehensive income PENEEE - 9,110 - 41,960 - 51,070
Appropriation to PRC statutory R EIAT R ERF
reserve - - - (8,632 3,632 -
Dividends approved in respect of ~ BLERR &
— current year X3 23(0)() - - - (10,024) - (10,024)
— previous year -fF 23(0)(i) - - - (30,054) - (30,054)
Shares issued under share BT ERERY
option scheme
— gross proceeds - EE 23(ail 4,623 - - - - 4,623
~transfer from capital reserve - EAREEY 622 - (622) - - -
5,245 9,110 62) (1,750) 3632 15,615
At 31 December 2021 R2021 F12 A 31 B 467,578 58,520 134 93,314 51,284 670,330

MREXBRAF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
(For the year ended 31 December 2022)
GEEREEX

(B2 20224 12 A 31 HIFFE)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB REN)
PRC
Share  Exchange Capital Retained statutory Total
capital reserve reserve earnings reserve equity
RA EifE EXGE REEN PEEERE Bt
(note 23(a)) (note 23(c)(i) (note 23(c)(i)) (note 23(c(iii))
(H&T2s(@) (Hi=E2s(c)i)) (KiaE28(c)(i)) (Bi=E 28(c) i)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Mgk BETT BRI BT BT BETT BETT
At 1 January 2022 R2022% 11 A& 467,578 58,520 134 93,314 51,284 670,830
Changes in equity for 2022: 20225 2 XS
Profit for the year RERRA - - - 30,504 - 30,504
Exchange differences on translation &8N EH N KRR
of financial statements EENELES
of foreign operation - (25,475) - - - (25,475)
Total comprehensive income SRMGEE - (25,475) - 30,504 - 5,029
Appropriation to PRC statutory R EIAE R ERF
reserve - - - (1,892) 1,892 -
Dividends approved in respect of ~ BERR &
— current year -KF 23(0)() - - - (10,026) - (10,026)
— previous year -fF 23(0)(i) - - - (20,053) - (20,053)
Shares issued under share BT ERERY
option scheme
— gross proceeds -Ela 23(ai 86 - - - - 86
— transfer from capital reserve - HERREER 12 - (12) = = =
Share options lapsed BiERH TR - - (122) 122 - -
98 (25,475) (134) (1,345) 1,892 (24,964)
At 31 December 2022 2022512 A 31 BE# 467,676 33,045 - 91,969 53,176 645,866
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
(For the year ended 31 December 2022)

RERERER
(B FE2022F 12 31 AIFFE)
(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABEREN)
2022 2021
Notes HK$’000 HK$’'000
MIEE BT T BT
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING K& ZHzHRERKE
ACTIVITIES
Profit before taxation B AR B Al 34,336 47,272
Adjustments for: FEE
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 9 497 508
Depreciation of property, W - BERRETE
plant and equipment 9 31,082 32,963
Foreign exchange differences, net EH FER (12,552) 3,719
Bank interest income RITH WA 6 (3,455) (449)
Net loss on disposal of property, HEME  BEK&
plant and equipment REEIEFE 6 15 66
Obsolete moulds and toolings BREA R T BRER
written off 9 417 600
Reversal of write-down of O REE T & 55
inventories, net 9 (66) (1,195)
Operating profit before working EEESRBHAKLEERN
capital changes 50,274 83,484
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL,(Em) 21,467 41,711)
Decrease in trade and B 5 N E At FE IR )08
other receivables 146,044 1,162
Decrease in trade and B 5 M E A FE AR FR0R
other payables (76,316) (14,663)
Cash generated from operations &E&ELZHRE 141,469 28,272
Tax paid: MIELZ W -
Hong Kong Profits Tax paid BEANGHZH (3,106) (6,493)
PRC Enterprise Income Tax paid R EMSR S (1,457) (2,691)
Net cash generated from RETHEE CBESFE
operating activities 136,906 19,088

FRBEARAT —T - —FEH 65




66

Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

(For the year ended 31 December 2022)

SEHERER
(BtZ 2022 F 12 H 31 AL F/ZF)

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

2022 2021
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
MIEE BET T BRI

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING RETZBHEENEESRE

ACTIVITIES
Purchases of property, plant EEME - BE L&

and equipment (20,102) (82,187)
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME  BE&

plant and equipment RABFTISIA 93 230
Interest received ISR ON 3,455 449
Net cash used in investing REZBTHZESFE

activities (16,554) (31,508)
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING RETHELENRESRE

ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from shares issued under BITHRER S 2 W

share option scheme 23(a)(ii) 86 4,623
Dividends paid SRR (30,050) (40,042)
Net cash used in financing METHZHZREFE

activities (29,964) (85,419)
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) ReRRELEHEER

IN CASH AND CASH #, CRd) FE

EQUIVALENTS 90,388 (47,839)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R1A1BZEER

AT 1 JANUARY He%EER 244,802 291,894
Effect of foreign exchange rate INEERBE 25

changes (811) 747
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS MN12A31 2B ER

AT 31 DECEMBER H&%EER 334,379 244,802
ANALYSIS OF CASH AND CASH ReRRESEEEBASN

EQUIVALENTS
Bank and cash balances RITHNIR & 458k 18 334,379 244,802
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

l. GENERAL INFORMATION

Raymond Industrial Limited (the “Company”) was
incorporated and domiciled in Hong Kong. The address of
its registered office and principal place of business is Rooms
1801 — 1813, 18th Floor, Grandtech Centre, 8 On Ping
Street, Shatin, New Territories, Hong Kong. The Company’s
shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“the Stock Exchange”).

The principal activity of the Company is sale of electrical
home appliances. The principal activities and other
particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in
note 29 to the consolidated financial statements.

In the opinion of the directors of the Company, Dr. WONG,
Kin Lae Wilson is the ultimate controlling party of the
Company.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements for year ended 31
December 2022 comprise the Company and its subsidiaries
(together the “Group”).

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”), issued by the Hong
Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (‘HKICPA”).
HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRS”); Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(“‘HKAS”); and Interpretations. These consolidated financial
statements also comply with the applicable disclosure
provisions of the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on the Stock Exchange and with the requirements of the
Companies Ordinance (Cap. 622). Significant accounting
policies adopted by the Group are disclosed below.

The HKICPA has issued certain new and revised HKFRSs
that are first effective or available for early adoption for the
current accounting period of the Group. Note 3 provides
information on any changes in accounting policies resulting
from initial application of these developments to the extent
that they are relevant to the Group for the current and prior
accounting periods reflected in these consolidated financial
statements.

GRMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)

. —RER
FREEARAR([AXF ) NEEFMAK » AalE
WEE LT ELEBMNANE ST A AL 8 EED
181 1801-1813F « AR BIRMMNBEEBM ARSI AR
Nl ([BRAT]) ERET -

ARBZEIBEHRHERMERS  EXTBXBRENE
RADHTE AR E M RERM T 29 -

AAREERAEEFIELBEAAOREKIEH -

2. REEE
HZE2022F 12 A1 AL FEMGEUEHRERBIEART
LEMBRAR([REH]) -

REEMBREDBERT LML ((EEBEFHMA
EDEMNMEEREEMBRELERN(EBUBRE
BRI MRE -  BEEMBEREERBEBBM B RS LER
(TEBMBHREEA])  FASHEA(ERETER))
K2k - NMEAMBHRENTEMRIAES MRS
BB A R ARG (£ 6228 ) VBB ENK - AEE
PRERME E B G EREENT ©

FAEGMASERME TRAREEN S HMERE
MK AR AT R B FT ] KB AT BB M IS RS 2R - K
TR AT S MHEREEARENE RS 2T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS

(@) Application of new and revised HKFRSs

The Group has applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:
Amendments to HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of
Fulfiling a Contract
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework
Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19 Related Rent
(March 2021) Concessions beyond

30 June 2021
Annual Improvements to HKFRS
Standards 2018-2020
Merger Accounting for Common
Control Combinations

Annual Improvements Project

Amendments to Accounting
Guideline 5

The amendments do not have an impact on these Group’s
financial statements in adopting the aforementioned
amended standards or annual improvements. As a result,
the Group was not required to change its accounting
policies or make retrospective adjustments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective

The Group has not applied any new standard, amendments
to standards and interpretation that have been issued but
are not yet effective for the financial year beginning 1 January
2022. The new standard, amendments to standards and
interpretation include the following which may be relevant to
the Group.

Effective for accounting
periods beginning
on or after

Amendments to HKAS 1 —
Classification of Liabilities
as Current or Non-current

1 January 2024

Amendments to HKAS 1 —
Non-current Liabilities with
Covenants

1 January 2024

Amendments to HKAS 1
and HKFRS Practice
Statement 2 — Disclosure
of Accounting Policies

1 January 2023

Amendments to HKAS 8
— Definition of Accounting
Estimates

1 January 2023

Amendments to HKAS 12 -
Deferred Tax Related to
Assets and Liabilities Arising
from a Single Transaction

1 January 2023

Amendments to HKFRS 16 —
|Lease Liability in a Sales
and Leaseback

1 January 2024

GRMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)

3. BRAAHET REERIERMBRERER (@)

(b) CEEMEERERNHET REBIT B RN
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

3. ADOPTION OF NEW AND REVISED
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (Continued)

(b) New and revised HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective (Continued)

Effective for accounting
periods beginning
on or after

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28 — Sale or
Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture

To be determined by the
HKICPA

Hong Kong Interpretation 5
(2020) Presentation of
Financial Statements —
Classification by the Borrower
of a Term Loan that Contains
a Repayment on Demand
Clause

1 January 2024

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far it
has concluded that the adoption of them is unlikely to have a
significant impact on the consolidated financial statements.

4.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
under the historical cost convention.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with
HKFRSs requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise
its judgements in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree
of judgements or complexity, or areas where assumptions
and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial
statements are disclosed in note 31.

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation
of these consolidated financial statements are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(@) Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial
statements of the Company and its subsidiaries made up to
31 December. Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group
has control. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through
its power over the entity. The Group has power over an
entity when the Group has existing rights that give it the
current ability to direct the relevant activities, i.e. activities
that significantly affect the entity’s returns.

When assessing control, the Group considers its potential
voting rights as well as potential voting rights held by other
parties. A potential voting right is considered only if the
holder has the practical ability to exercise that right.

Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which control
is transferred to the Group. They are de-consolidated from
the date the control ceases.

Intragroup transactions, balances and unrealised profits are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the
transaction provides evidence of an impairment of the asset
transferred. Accounting policies of subsidiaries have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.

In the Company’s statement of financial position, an
investment in a subsidiary is stated at cost less impairment
losses (see note 4(1)).

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is
required if the carrying amount of the investment in the
separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount
in the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net
assets.

GRMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Foreign currency translation
(i) Functional and presentation currency

[tems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars (‘“HK$”),
which is the Company’s functional and presentation
currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances in each entity’s
financial statements

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the
functional currency on initial recognition using the exchange
rates prevailing on the transaction dates. Monetary assets
and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated at the
exchange rates at the end of each reporting period.
Gains and losses resulting from this translation policy are
recognised in profit or loss.

Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the foreign exchange rates ruling at the transaction
dates. The transaction date is the date on which the
company initially recognises such non-monetary assets
or liabilities. Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in foreign currencies are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates when the fair values are determined.

When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is recognised
in other comprehensive income, any exchange component
of that gain or loss is recognised in other comprehensive
income. When a gain or loss on a non-monetary item is
recognised in profit or loss, any exchange component of
that gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(b) Foreign currency translation (Continued)
(iii) Translation on consolidation

The results and financial position of all foreign operations
(none of which has the currency of hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
Company’s presentation currency are translated into the
Company’s presentation currency as follows:

- Assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that statement of financial position;

- Income and expenses are translated at average
exchange rates for the period (unless this average
is not a reasonable approximation of the cumulative
effect of the rates prevailing on the transaction dates,
in which case income and expenses are translated at
the exchange rates on the transaction dates); and

- All resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
foreign currency translation reserve.

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of monetary items that form part of the net
investment in foreign entities are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in the foreign
currency translation reserve. When a foreign operation
is sold, such exchange differences are reclassified to
consolidated profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on
disposal.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are held for use in
the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than cost of construction in
progress described below). Property, plant and equipment
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost, less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any (see note
4(1)).

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs
and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss during the
period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation of property, plant and equipment is calculated
at rates sufficient to write off their cost less their residual
values over the estimated useful lives at the principal annual
rates as follows:

4.0% - 4.5%
straight line

Buildings held for own use which
are situated on leasehold land,
where the fair value of the
building could be measured
separately from the fair value
of the leasehold land at the
inception of the lease
(see note 4(d))

Leasehold land is depreciated
over the unexpired term
of lease (see note 4(d))

2.0% straight line

Plant and machinery 9.0% — 18.0% straight line

Furniture, fixtures and
equipment

9.0% — 33.3% straight line

Motor vehicles 25.0% reducing balance

and 18.0% straight line
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(c) Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation method
are reviewed and adjusted, if appropriate, at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

The cost of construction in progress includes the cost of
machinery, materials, construction expenditures and other
costs directly attributable to bringing the assets to a working
condition for its intended use. Construction in progress
is not depreciated until it is completed and ready for its
intended use.

The gain or loss on disposal of property, plant and
equipment is the difference between the net sales proceeds
and the carrying amount of the relevant asset, and is
recognised in profit of loss.

(d) Leases

At inception of a contract, the Group assesses whether the
contract is, or contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains,
a lease if the contract conveys the right to control the use
of an identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration. Control is conveyed where the customer has
both the right to direct the use of the identified asset and to
obtain substantially all of the economic benefits from that
use.

The Group as a lessee

At the lease commencement date, the Group recognises
a right-of-use asset and a lease liability, except for short-
term leases that have a lease term of 12 months or less and
leases of low-value assets which, for the Group are primarily
warehouses and carpark. When the Group enters into a
lease in respect of a low-value asset, the Group decides
whether to capitalise the lease on a lease-by-lease basis.
The lease payments associated with those leases which
are not capitalised are recognised as an expense on a
systematic basis over the lease term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

Where the lease is capitalised, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term, discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease or, if that rate cannot be readily
determined, using a relevant incremental borrowing rate.
Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement of
the lease liability. After initial recognition, the lease liability
is measured at amortised cost and interest expense is
calculated using the effective interest method.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
rate are not included in the measurement of the lease liability
and hence are charged to profit or loss in the accounting
period in which they are incurred.

The right-of-use asset recognised when a lease is capitalised
is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial
amount of the lease liability plus any lease payments made
at or before the commencement date, and any initial direct
costs incurred. Where applicable, the cost of the right-of-
use assets also includes an estimate of costs to dismantle
and remove the underlying asset or to restore the underlying
asset or the site on which it is located, discounted to their
present value, less any lease incentives received. The right-
of-use asset is subsequently stated at cost less accumulated
depreciation and impairment losses.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to
fair value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(d) Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)

The lease liability is remeasured when there is a change in
future lease payments arising from a change in an index
or rate, or there is a change in the Group’s estimate of the
amount expected to be payable under a residual value
guarantee, or there is a change arising from the reassessment
of whether the Group will be reasonably certain to exercise
a purchase, extension or termination option. When the
lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding
adjustment is made to the carrying amount of the right-
of-use asset, or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying
amount of the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

The lease liability is also remeasured when there is a change
in the scope of a lease or the consideration for a lease that
is not originally provided for in the lease contract (“lease
modification”) that is not accounted for as a separate
lease. In this case the lease liability is remeasured based on
the revised lease payments and lease term using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The cost of acquiring land held under an operating lease
is amortised on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease term. Impairment losses are recognised in accordance
with accounting policy set out in note 4(t).

The Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it determines at lease
inception whether each lease is a finance lease or an
operating lease. A lease is classified as a finance lease if it
transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
the ownership of an underlying assets to the lessee. If this is
not the case, the lease is classified as an operating lease.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(e) Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost is determined using the weighted average basis.
The cost of finished goods and work in progress comprises
raw materials, direct labour and an appropriate proportion of
all production overhead expenditure, and where appropriate,
subcontracting charges. The costs of purchased inventory
are determined after deducting rebates and discounts. Net
realisable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less the estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.

When inventories are sold, the carrying amount of those
inventories is recognised as an expense in the period in
which the related revenue is recognised. The amount of
any write-down of inventories to net realisable value and all
losses of inventories are recognised as an expense in the
period the write-down or loss occurs. The amount of any
reversal of any write-down of inventories is recognised as
a reduction in the amount of inventories recognised as an
expense in the period in which the reversal occurs.

()  Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised in the
consolidated statement of financial position when the Group
entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the
instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value. Transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”)) are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

()  Recognition and derecognition of financial
instruments (Continued)

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group’s obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable, including any non-cash assets transferred or
liabilities assumed, is recognised in profit or loss.

(g  Financial assets

All regular way purchases or sales of financial assets are
recognised and derecognised on a trade date basis. Regular
way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of financial
assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame
established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
All recognised financial assets are measured subsequently in
their entirety at either amortised cost or fair value, depending
on the classification of the financial assets.

(h)  Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration. A right to
receive consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is required before payment of that consideration is due.
If revenue has been recognised before the Group has an
unconditional right to receive consideration, the amount is
presented as a contract asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(h)  Trade and other receivables (Continued)

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they contain
significant financing components, when they are recognised
at fair value. The Group holds the trade receivables with
the objective of collecting the contractual cash flows and
therefore measures them subsequently at amortised cost
using the effective interest method less allowance for credit
losses (see note 4(u)).

() Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when the customer pays
consideration before the Group recognises the related
revenue. A contract liability would also be recognised if the
Group has an unconditional right to receive consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. In
such cases, a corresponding receivable would also be
recognised.

M) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and
on hand, demand deposits with banks and other financial
institutions, and short term, highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and
which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
having been within three months of maturity at acquisition.
Cash and cash equivalents are assessed for expected credit
losses (“ECLs”) in accordance with the policy set out in note
4(u).

(k) Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial liabilities and equity instruments are classified
according to the substance of the contractual arrangements
entered into and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument under HKFRSs. An equity instrument
is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the
assets of the Group after deducting all of its liabilities. The
accounting policies adopted for specific financial liabilities
and equity instruments are set out below.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

() Trade and other payables

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value
are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method unless the effect of discounting
would be immaterial, in which case they are stated at cost.

(m)

An equity instrument is any contract that evidence a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recorded at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Equity instruments

(n)  Revenue and other income

Revenue is recognised when control over a product or
service is transferred to the customer, at the amount of
promised consideration to which the Group is expected to
be entitled, excluding those amounts collected on behalf of
third parties. Revenue excludes value added tax or other
sales taxes and is after deduction of any trade discounts.

(i) Sale of goods

Revenue from the sales of electrical home appliances is
recognised when control of the goods has transferred, being
when the goods have been shipped to the wholesaler’s
specific location (delivery). Following delivery, the wholesaler
has full discretion over the manner of distribution and price
to sell the goods, has the primary responsibility when on
selling the goods and bears the risks of obsolescence and
loss in relation to the goods. A receivable is recognised by
the Group when the goods are delivered to the wholesaler
as this represents the point in time at which the right to
consideration becomes unconditional, as only the passage
of time is required before payment is due.

(i) Interest income

Interest income is recognised as it accrues using the
effective interest method. For credit impaired financial
assets, the effective interest rate is applied to the amortised
cost (i.e. gross carrying amount net of loss allowance) of the
asset.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(n)  Revenue and other income (Continued)
(iii) Rental income

Rental income receivable under operating leases is
recognised in profit or loss in equal instalments over the
periods covered by the lease term, except where an
alternative basis is more representative of the pattern of
benefits to be derived from the use of the leased asset.

(o) Product development costs

Expenditure on development activities, whereby research
findings are applied to a plan or design for the production
of new or substantially improved products and processes,
is capitalised if the product or process is technically and
commercially feasible and the Group has sufficient resources
and the intention to complete development. The expenditure
capitalised includes the costs of materials, direct labour
and an appropriate proportion of overheads. Development
expenditure which does not meet these criteria is recognised
as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.

(p) Employee benefits
(i) Employee leave entitlements

Employee entitlements to annual leave and long service
leave are recognised when they accrue to employees. A
provision is made for the estimated liability for annual leave
and long service leave as a result of services rendered by
employees up to the end of the reporting period.

Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity leave are
not recognised until the time of leave.

(i) Pension obligations

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
schemes which are available to all employees. Contributions
to the schemes by the Group and employees are calculated
as a percentage of employees’ basic salaries. The retirement
benefit scheme cost charged to profit or loss represents
contributions payable by the Group to the funds.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(p) Employee benefits (Continued)
(iii) Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised at the earlier of the
dates when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits, and when the Group recognises restructuring
costs and involves the payment of termination benefits.

(gq)  Share-based payments

The Company operates a share option scheme under which
the Group receives services or goods from its directors,
employees and other eligible persons as consideration for
share options of the Company. The fair value of the services
or goods received in exchange for the grant of the share
options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to
be expensed is determined by reference to the fair value of
the share options, which is measured at grant date using
the Black Scholes model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. Where
the counterparties have to meet vesting conditions before
becoming unconditionally entitled to the options, the total
estimated fair value of the options is spread over the vesting
period, taking into account the probability that the options
will vest.

During the vesting period, the number of share options that
is expected to vest is reviewed. Any resulting adjustment to
the cumulative fair value recognised in prior years is charged/
credited to profit or loss for the year of the review, unless
the original expenses qualify for recognition as an asset,
with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve.
On vesting date, the amount recognised as an expense is
adjusted to reflect the actual number of options that vest
(with a corresponding adjustment to the capital reserve)
except where forfeiture is only due to not achieving vesting
conditions that relate to the market price of the Company’s
shares. The equity amount is recognised in the capital
reserve until either the option is exercised which included in
the amount recognised in share capital for the shares issued
or the option expires (when it is released directly to retained
earnings).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(r) Government grants

A government grant is recognised when there is reasonable
assurance that the Group will comply with the conditions
attaching to it and that the grant will be received.

Government grants relating to income are deferred and
recognised in profit or loss over the period to match them
with the costs they are intended to compensate.

Government grants that become receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or
for the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit or
loss in the period in which they become receivable.

(s) Taxation

Income tax represents the sum of the current tax and
deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit recognised in profit
or loss because of items of income or expense that are
taxable or deductible in other years and items that are
never taxable or deductible. The Group’s liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the consolidated
financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used
in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities
are generally recognised for all taxable temporary differences
and deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which deductible temporary differences, unused tax losses
or unused tax credits can be utilised. Such assets and
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than
in a business combination) of other assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)  Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences arising on investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in joint arrangements, except
where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax is calculated at the tax rates that are expected
to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the asset
is realised, based on tax rates that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.
Deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except when it
relates to items recognised in other comprehensive income
or directly in equity, in which case the deferred tax is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-
use assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. Temporary differences relating to right-of-
use assets and lease liabilities are not recognised at initial
recognition and over the lease terms due to application of
the initial recognition exemption.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(s)  Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
1o settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis, or
1o realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant
tax authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used,
or proposed to be used by individual group entities in their
income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred
taxes are determined consistently with the tax treatment in
the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment,
the effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the
most likely amount or the expected value.

(t)  Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of non-financial assets are reviewed
at each reporting date for indications of impairment and
where an asset is impaired, it is written down as an expense
through the consolidated statement of profit or loss to its
estimated recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is
determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not
generate cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets. If this is the case,
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. Recoverable amount is
the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs of
disposal of the individual asset or the cash-generating unit.

Value in use is the present value of the estimated future cash
flows of the asset/cash-generating unit. Present values are
computed using pre-tax discount rates that reflect the time
value of money and the risks specific to the asset/cash-
generating unit whose impairment is being measured.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(t)  Impairment of non-financial assets (Continued)

Impairment losses for cash-generating units are allocated
first against the goodwill of the unit and then pro rata
amongst the other assets of the cash-generating unit.
Subsequent increases in the recoverable amount caused
by changes in estimates are credited to profit or loss to the
extent that they reverse the impairment.

(u)  Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECLs on trade
receivables and instruments that are measured at amortised
cost. The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting date
to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition of the
respective financial instrument.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these financial assets are estimated
using a provision matrix based on the Group’s historical
credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are specific
to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date, including time
value of money where appropriate.

For all other financial instruments, the Group recognises
lifetime ECL when there has been a significant increase in
credit risk since initial recognition. However, if the credit risk
on the financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition, the Group measures the loss
allowance for that financial instrument at an amount equal to
12-month ECL.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a financial
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default
events on a financial instrument that are possible within 12
months after the reporting date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument at the date of
initial recognition. In making this assessment, the Group
considers both quantitative and qualitative information
that is reasonable and supportable, including historical
experience and forward-looking information that is available
without undue cost or effort. Forward-looking information
considered includes the future prospects of the industries in
which the Group’s debtors operate, obtained from economic
expert reports, financial analysts, governmental bodies,
relevant think-tanks and other similar organisations, as well
as consideration of various external sources of actual and
forecast economic information that relate to the Group’s
core operations.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

- significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument;

- existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected to
cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to
meet its debt obligations;

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor;

- significant increases in credit risk on other financial
instruments of the same debtor;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

- an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a significant
decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk on a financial
asset has increased significantly since initial recognition
when contractual payments are more than 30 days past
due, unless the Group has reasonable and supportable
information that demonstrates otherwise.

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the credit
risk on a financial instrument has not increased significantly
since initial recognition if the financial instrument is
determined to have low credit risk at the reporting date. A
financial instrument is determined to have low credit risk if:

(i) the financial instrument has a low risk of default;

(ii) the debtor has a strong capacity to meet its
contractual cash flow obligations in the near term;
and

(iii) adverse changes in economic and business
conditions in the longer term may, but will not
necessarily, reduce the ability of the borrower to fulffil
its contractual cash flow obligations.

The Group considers a financial asset to have low credit
risk when the asset has external credit rating of “investment
grade” in accordance with the globally understood definition
or if an external rating is not available, the asset has an
internal rating of “performing”. Performing means that the
counterparty has a strong financial position and there is no
past due amount.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria
used to identify whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that
the criteria are capable of identifying significant increase in
credit risk before the amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event
of default for internal credit risk management purposes as
historical experience indicates that receivables that meet
either of the following criteria are generally not recoverable.

- when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

- information developed internally or obtained from
external sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely
to pay its creditors, including the Group, in full (without
taking into account any collaterals held by the
Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that
default has occurred when a financial asset is more than
90 days past due unless the Group has reasonable and
supportable information to demonstrate that a more lagging
default criterion is more appropriate.

Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more events
that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash
flows of that financial asset have occurred. Evidence that a
financial asset is credit-impaired includes observable data
about the following events:

- significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the
counterparty;

- a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets (Continued)

- the lender(s) of the counterparty, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the counterparty’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the counterparty
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

- it is becoming probable that the counterparty will
enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; or

- the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the debtor is in severe financial
difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of recovery,
including when the debtor has been placed under liquidation
or has entered into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the
case of trade receivables, when the amounts are over two
years past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. Any recoveries made are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss
given default is based on historical data adjusted by
forward-looking information as described above. As for the
exposure at default, for financial assets, this is represented
by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference
between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the original
effective interest rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(u)  Impairment of financial assets (Continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting
date that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met,
the Group measures the loss allowance at an amount equal
to 12-month ECL at the current reporting date, except for
assets for which simplified approach was used.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments with a corresponding
adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss
allowance account.

(v)  Provisions and contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised for liabilities of uncertain timing or
amount when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation arising as a result of a past event, it is probable
that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be made. Where
the time value of money is material, provisions are stated at
the present value of the expenditure expected to settle the
obligation.

Where it is not probable that an outflow of economic benefits
will be required, or the amount cannot be estimated reliably,
the obligation is disclosed as a contingent liability, unless the
probability of outflow is remote. Possible obligations, whose
existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more future events are also disclosed
as contingent liabilities unless the probability of outflow is
remote.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4, SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
(Continued)

(w) Events after the reporting period

Events after the reporting period that provide additional
information about the Group’s position at the end of the
reporting period are adjusting events and are reflected
in the consolidated financial statements. Events after the
reporting period that are not adjusting events are disclosed
in the notes to the consolidated financial statements when
material.

5. REVENUE

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with customers by
major products for the year is as follows:
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SEMKBRERMNEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(AR REN)
5. REVENUE (Continued) 5. WA ()

The Group derives revenue from the transfer of goods at a ~ ANEEEHELA T Hb R IZ R [ERHRHER EMRESFRA

point in time in the following geographical regions:

Manufacture and sale of

electrical home appliances

FSAZEENEENHEE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Primary geographical markets FTEMETIS
— The United States of America (‘USA”) EFIE2 4 ARE ([ £E ) 260,909 458,855
- The PRC H 525,352 798,731
— Japan SN 314,387 297,039
— Europe BM 218,263 303,760
— Asia (excluding Japan and the PRC) Z5/H (B3 AA M AE) 908,430 1,261,874
— Rest of the world R 54,235 32,675
Segment revenue D EBA 2,281,576 3,152,934
Inter-segment revenue MEB S EBULA
—The PRC — (371,446) (527,222)
— Asia (excluding Japan and the PRC) - 5l (B3 AR AE) (847,072) (1,192,100)
(1,218,518) (1,719,322)
Revenue from external customers EHNEE 2 WA 1,063,058 1,433,612
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GRMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABEREN)
6. OTHER REVENUE AND OTHER NET 6. HUARHAMFKE
INCOME
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T ST T
Other revenue Hipug A
Bank interest income RITHBHA 3,455 449
Other net income Hipguas
Net gain on disposal of scrap materials H &R S5 1,611 852
Net exchange gain R Gy 1,104 125
Net loss on disposal of HEME  WMEMREEEFE
property, plant and equipment (15) (66)
Installation fee income LB 2,133 -
Subsidy income RN 2,267 841
Sundry income H bz 568 520
Rental income ikl Gy 1,770 -
9,438 2,272

7.  SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacture and
sale of electrical home appliances. In a manner consistent
with the way in which information is reported internally to the
Group’s senior management for the purposes of resource
allocation and performance assessment, the Group has
identified six reportable segments on a geographical basis:
Japan, USA, the PRC, Europe, Asia (excluding Japan
and the PRC) and rest of the world. The electrical home
appliances are manufactured in the Group’s manufacturing
facilities located in the PRC. The “rest of the world” segment
covers sales of electrical home appliances to customers in
Australia, Canada, South America and Africa.

(@) Segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities

For the purposes of assessing segment performance and
allocating resources between segments, the Group’s senior
executive management monitors the profit or loss, assets
and liabilities attributable to each reportable segment on the
following bases:

7. DEHER

AEETBEGRRENRHERMER - NG :éfﬂﬂhz
HEARERSETREEABUTEDHRRELDESH
BRAEMZER B2 ARE - K’ilﬂﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ"“%
BiE ey /NESE : BA - KB - 8- BN - 52M
(TEEBEARPE) MERZM - AEERERBERLZ
REETE - DHPZEREHMEREHERAERTR

M- EX - BEREIEMNZEP °

@) HEHER BERERE

DHEHMEREAEERSETREREABRTEDFXR
fﬁ& ’\*Béﬁﬁﬂmﬁﬁzéﬂ Bz mE - Bt
Z?»‘%@Zm THETRA B THRIA T AR 5 & A 3R
SO B2 R ‘éf*&féf,ai

oif

NREBEARARF —T__F5FH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

() Segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities
(Continued)

Segment assets include all tangible assets and current
assets with the exception of tax balances. Segment liabilities
include trade and other payables, with the exception of
tax balances and dividends payable, attributable to the
manufacture and sales activities of the individual segments.
Segment non-current assets do not include deferred tax
assets.

Revenue and expenses are allocated to the reportable
segments with reference to sales generated by those
segments and the expenses incurred by those segments.
Segment profit or loss do not include other revenue and
other net income or loss, and the depreciation of assets not
attributable to those segments.

The measurement used for reporting segment profit is
“adjusted EBITDA” i.e. “adjusted earnings before interest,
taxes and depreciation”. To arrive at adjusted EBITDA,
the Group’s earnings are further adjusted for items not
specifically attributed to individual segments, such as other
head office or corporate administration costs.

In addition to receiving segment information concerning
adjusted EBITDA, management is provided with segment
information concerning inter-segment sales, interest income
and expense from cash balances managed directly by
the segments, depreciation and additions to non-current
segment assets used by the segments in their operations.
Inter-segment sales are priced with reference to prices
charged to external parties for similar orders.
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7. oEHER®
@) 2ER BEREEE

DHEEREMBANEERRBEE  BTEEARKEA
BE - nHAEREBNER D B REMEEREHIT
ERNE S REMBMNER - ETREER D FF RG22 HE
BEKEMNBRE - DEERBEETREELRAEE

HﬁU\&S‘ZﬁTJﬂ%E %%E‘ EENHEERZFNBELN
FRXDBEEAMEDH - DA BRETBEEEMUAMEL
5%14%?’1521%%% AR TERNELED B EEFE -

DI mF R A %R 2 AEEBITDA] - BIT K
FFE - BMERTEMIKEHARRN ] BEHE AR
EBITDA AEE 2Nt EEE R D32 EE (142
NENTEKA) (EHE— PR FHE -

BRESERCDHAREBTDAZ D BB - BB MERM
BRAAEBIHE 2 JEUA - ﬂguﬁl)\&EE“*B&Tﬁ%Fiiﬁ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(NBBREN)

7.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. oHER @
(@) Segment profit or loss, assets and liabilities (2) 2 #PiEHE - EEREE (@)
(Continued)

Information regarding the Group’s reportable segments as SR E T AEEESETHEEAEUDIER LLE
provided to the Group’s most senior executive management 5z IE 7 EREHFIHN T °

for the purposes of resource allocation and assessment of

segment performance for the year is set out below.

Electrical home appliances

FREE
Asia
(excluding Japan
USA The PRC Japan Europe and the PRC) Rest of the world Total
A L] Bk B G (FafREARYE) tREH ait

202 m 02 01 02 0 02 0 2| o 202 m 02 01
HKS000 | HKSO00 [ HKS'000 | HKSO00 | HKSO00 [ HKSO0D | HKS000 | HKSO00 | HKS000 | HKSOO0 | HKS$000 | HKS000 | HKS000 | HKS000
ANTR | B¥TT [ B8TR [ B%Tn | AMTm [ BETn [ AMTm [ R%Tr | AMFm | BETn | #RTm | RETR | AMEm | %

Revenue fom extemal cusomers 1 2P 244 260009 | 458805 | 193,906 | 271500 | 314387 | 207030 | 218263 | 303760 | 61388 | 69774 | 54235 | 32675 | 1,088,068 | 1433612

Inter-segment evenue REABUA - - | s | 5702 - - - - | eanom | 119,100 - - [1.218518 | 1719322

Reportable segment revenue ~ ERERREYRRL
recognised at a point in time THEAPRA 260009 | 458855 | 526362 | 798731 | 314387 | 297039 | 218263 | 303760 | 908430 | 1261874 | 54235 | 32675 | 2,281,576 | 3162934

Reportable segment profit TREATER

(adjusted EBITDA) (BHREBITDA) 18014 | 24973 7616 | 14777 | 15681 | 16167 | 10887 | 16531 | 58620 | 74168 | 2704 1777 108582 | 148398
Reportable segment assets M2ASIAZ
as at 31 December TEEADER = - | Msge | A3 - - - - | 574801 | 634486 - - 11,020,453 | 1,072,913

Reportable segment labies RM2ASIEZ

o =2

asal 3 Decernber TREA9EE - - | (issa) | i) - - - - | o) | prosay - - | oo | o0sey
Addifons to non-curent KERHERD
sementassets dung teyer  AHEEEM - R 172 VAL - - - - - - - 57 AL
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBBREN)

7. SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities

DEBER (®)
AREDTZBWA - B  BEREBZYER

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BT T BT T
Revenue LN
Reportable segment revenue AR D ERUA 2,281,576 3,152,934
Elimination of inter-segment revenue A EF D SPUAIL (1,218,518) (1,719,322)
Consolidated revenue AU A 1,063,058 1,433,612
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T ST T
Profit or loss Bi
Reportable segment profit S5 Em T 108,582 148,393
Elimination of inter-segment profits MR 53 8 F 1R 8 (55,560) (70,371)
Reportable segment profit derived from {ERE@MEINEF 2
Group’s external customers Al 2R o 20 53,022 78,022
Other revenue and other net income  E U A K H fth 3 F 25 12,893 2,721
Depreciation e (31,579) (33,471)
Consolidated profit before taxation EREBRTR AR 34,336 47,272
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Assets BE
Reportable segment assets AIRED I EE 1,020,453 1,072,913
Elimination of inter-segment receivables P& 0 & Uk BR 204K $5 (169,178) (119,702)
851,275 953,211
Current tax assets BIEATR I E &= - 664
Deferred tax assets RIERIAE = 2,865 3,000
Consolidated total assets REREE 854,140 956,875
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(LB¥AREN)
7.  SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued) 7. oEHER®
(b) Reconciliations of reportable segment (b) FAHRETHKA - B - BEREBEZHIR
revenue, profit or loss, assets and liabilities (%)
(Continued)
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Liabilities =R
Reportable segment liabilities AHESIHaE (376,097) (490,550)
Elimination of inter-segment payables P304 30 FE{ BR ZK 84 169,179 207,316
(206,918) (283,234)
Dividends payable JERTAZ B (351) (322)
Current tax liabilities BENEATRIE B & (846) (2,326)
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFIEAE (159) (163)
Consolidated total liabilities REBAatE (208,274) (286,045)
(€)  Revenue from major customers (0 FEEFHKA

Revenue from major customers, each of whom amounted HIFrEXRFEFAEZIRA @ BEFPDRMEAREF LU A 10%
to 10% or more of the total revenue of the Group, is set out  ZgLA &+ 5140 -

below:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BRI
Customer A ZPA 311,480 292,772
Customer B ZFB 246,339 307,288
Customer C BFC 171,916 382,726
Customer D ZFD 125,820 159,906

FREBEEARAR —T-—FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BB REN)
8. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 8.

(@) Income tax has been recognised in profit or  (a)
loss as follows:

FRrEBixZ
FreHeEREPEEME :

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Current tax - Hong Kong Profits Tax BI#i%{18 - &FBF5EH
Provision for the year (note 14) FREME (HFE14) 3,821 3,796
Over-provision in respect of prior years 81 & [E B A S (57) (319
3,764 3,477
Current tax - PRC Enterprise BNEAFLIE - PRI EFTEBH
Income Tax
Provision for the year (note 14) FNEHE (T 14) 1,356 3,348
Over-provision in respect of prior years @1t EBEa R (1,242) (1,310)
114 2,038
Deferred tax ELERE
Origination and reversal of temporary By Z= £ ) E £ A B (M5 15)
differences (note 15) (46) (203)
3,832 5,312

it

Notes:
0] Hong Kong Profits Tax (i)

Under the two-tiered Profits Tax rate regime, the first
HK$2,000,000 of profits of the qualifying group entity
established in Hong Kong will be taxed at 8.25%, and profit
above that amount will be subject to the tax rate of 16.5%.
The profits of the group entities not qualifying for the two-
tiered Profit Tax rate regime will continue to be taxed at a
rate of 16.5%.

(ii) PRC Enterprise Income Tax (i)
A subsidiary in the PRC was qualified as a high and new

technology enterprise and taxed at a preferential tax rate of
15% (2021: 15%).
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BEMAGFEHENE  EEERNINEGEREEETE
K) & /B % 2,000,000 7T 4 F1 1 2 8.25% B B R 8 - i ied
BZEEREFIZBIZ16.5% ML EREF o TFFE MARSIF
BREFEZEEETRAGEFASEEIE 16.5% B R4 -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABEREN)
8.  INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Continued) 8. BB ®
(b)  The reconciliation between the income tax (b) A5 % & M B2 % Al M S LUE A B RV ER
expense and the product of profit before ZEHERMT
tax multiplied by the applicable tax rates is
as follows:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Profit before taxation BR% AE A 34,336 47,272
Notional tax on profit before taxation, &A@t @ EAHRKTE 2
calculated at the rates applicable to  BRH{ AT FI 2 & FiE
profits in the jurisdictions concerned 5,521 7,472
Tax effect of non-deductible expenses  ANA 1R St H 2 i #5222 128 43
Tax effect of non-taxable income IEERTIA & (563) (633)
Effect of temporary differences R EERSIARITE
not recognised 45 59
Over-provision in respect of prior years @1 & [Z HRRE RS (1,299) (1,629)
Actual tax expense BERRIES T 3,832 5,312

FREBEEARAR —T-—FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

9. PROFIT FORTHEYEAR

The Group’s profit for the year is stated after charging/

(crediting) the following:

9. HFEmA
AREEAFEHEFEAA (R A TEA -

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Staff costs (including directors’ BIRK(BEEEMS (HE10))
remuneration (note 10))
Salaries, wages and other benefits e TEREAMER (FEE)))

(note (i) 190,191 234,719
Discretionary bonuses BB 2 E4L 2,000 2,757
Contributions to defined contribution 5 Eft FRKETE] 2 5k

retirement plans EH 16,854 17,406

209,045 254,882
Other items HiE g
Cost of inventories sold FEEERA (FEE 16 KM (i)

(note 16 and note (ii)) 933,071 1,261,281
Write-down of inventories FERE 912 129
Reversal of write-down of inventories 17 & (& [2] (978) (1,324)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 497 508
Depreciation of property, ME - WELRZETE

plant and equipment 31,082 32,963
Auditor’s remuneration ZEET S
— provision for the year - FREE 750 700
— under-provision in prior year - BEFERETR 40 45
Product development costs (note (i)  EmEEEAA (PFE (i) 39,115 46,584
Obsolete moulds and toolings PSR AN T B iRREE

written off 417 600
Expenses relating to leases of HEEEEEMERENER

low value assets (included in cost (BREEFERAN—K&

of inventories and general and THERF) (M v)

administrative expenses) (note (iv)) 469 584
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(i)

(i

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

PROFIT FOR THEYEAR (Continued)

For the year ended 31 December 2022, COVID-19
related government grants amounting to HK$620,000
(2021:HK$NIl) have been offset against salaries, wages and
other benefits.

Cost of inventories includes approximately HK$178,334,000
(2021: HK$221,488,000) relating to staff costs and
depreciation, which are also included in the respective total
amounts disclosed separately above.

Cost of inventories also includes approximately HK$417,000
(2021: HK$600,000) relating to obsolete moulds and
toolings written off.

Product development costs include approximately
HK$26,063,000 (2021: HK$26,848,000) relating to staff
costs and depreciation, which are also included in the
respective total amounts disclosed separately above.

For the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the
Group leases various warehouses and carpark for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term
of one month to two years. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain a wide range of different
terms and conditions. In determining the lease term and
assessing the length of the non-cancellable period, the
Group applies the definition of a contract and determines
the period for which the contract is enforceable.

(i)

(i

(v)

GRMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)

FERMN @

HZE2022F 12 A31 HILFE © H2019 RS HAEEN
BB A7 620,000 7T (20214 « )  BHEHFS - T
& R EMEF R o

HFERABTEE TRARITE A 178,334,000 7t (2021
fF ¢ % 221,488,0007T)  INVEER L ERI B ESBE
ResHE -

FERATVEIE L% 417,000 7T (2021 4F -
JT) 0 ETREEAREA N TEGR -

& # 600,000

EmFAEKARTESRME TRARITE 4751 26,063,000
JC (2021 4 : ¥ 26,848,0007T)  IVEIER Ll & 18
BRABLH -

@i§2022¢&2021¢12ﬁ315¢¢r rEEHEES
BAEERFESUHEE HESRNETHNRR—EA
EMF - HERKERBEEAABRGEN - 25EETH
B RTRAN G AT - FEREE T E MM A AR RN RE
- AEBERERAERLEE SR ATATHR -

NREBEARARF —T__F5FH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SEMKBRERMNEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BB REN)

0. BENEFITS AND

DIRECTORS

(@) The remuneration of every director is set

out below:

INTERESTS OF

10. EFHNZNED

@) BUESHMERHIIOT :

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services
as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

REAREES (THREADARE AR RENHEREUH S

Salaries,
allowances
and benefits Discretionary  Retirement
Directors’ in kind bonuses scheme
fees & K15 contributions Total
e  RMREN  BMZEL  BRASEX A&t
HK$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$000 HK$’000
BETT BETT BRI T BETT BT T
Year ended 31 December 2022 Z2022F12 831 AEEL
Executive directors BTES
Dr. WONG, Man HinRaymond ~ EXEBEL (/)

(Chairman) 220 3,878 480 300 4,878
Mr. WONG, Ying Man John BRGEEGRER)

(Vice-Chairman) 170 3,973 380 240 4,763
Mr. MOK, Kin Hing RRELE 150 2,112 260 162 2,684
Non-executive directors FETES
Dr. WONG, Kin Lae Wilson mEANE L 150 257 200 - 607
Mr. XIONG, Zhengfeng BRIFUE LA (FIRE ()

(note (i)) - - - - -
Mr. WONG, Ying Kit David HRGRE 150 - - - 150
Independent non-executive BYFHTES

directors
Mr. LO, Kwong Shun Wilson BEELE 210 - - - 210
Ms. LING, Kit Sum Imma ERLE T 210 - - - 210
Dr. KO, Siu Fung Stephen Sl 210 - - - 210

1,470 10,220 1,320 702 13,712
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0. BENEFITS AND

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(NBBREN)

DIRECTORS (Continued)

(@) The remuneration of every director is set

out below: (Continued)

INTERESTS OF

10. ESHNAZENERE)

@ BUEENMESH|IIWOT : (&)

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person” s services
as a director, whether of the Company or its subsidiary undertaking

REAEFES (TRRADAISEFLR) RENH S S ENE 2
Salaries,
allowances
and benefits  Discretionary Retirement
Directors’ in kind bonuses scheme
fees e i contributions Total
e RERET  BRIREL RASER CEH
HKS$" 000 HK$' 000 HK$' 000 HK$" 000 HK$ ' 000
BT BT BT BETT BETT
Year ended 31 December 2021 £2021412 A31 BEE I
Executive directors H7ES
Dr. WONG, Kin Lae Wilson ELMEL ()

(note (i) 188 257 350 - 795
Dr. WONG, Man Hin Raymond & XX B £ (/) (B3 (i)

(Chairman) (note (ii) 173 3,836 500 300 4,809
Mr. WONG, Ying Man John BRGEAE(FEE) (W)

(Vice-Chairman) (note (iv) 170 3,822 400 240 4,632
Mr. MOK; Kin Hing Rf@f A 150 2,103 280 162 2,695
Non-executive directors FETES
Dr. WONG, Kin Lae Wilson BE B L (B ()

(note (i) 9 - - - 9
Mr. XIONG, Zhengfeng ARIE 58 4 (T ()

(note (i)) - - - - -
Mr. WONG, Ying Kit David ERATAE 150 - - - 150
Independent non-executive BYFHTES

directors
Mr. FAN, Ren Da Anthony BEk A (W)

(note (v)) 81 - - - 81
Mr. NG, Yiu Ming (note (vi)) HRm %A (M) 158 - - - 158
Mr. LO, Kwong Shun Wilson BEELE 210 - - - 210
Ms. LING, Kit Sum Imma ERLITE 210 - - - 210
Dr. KO, Siu Fung Stephen BOLEL (i vi)

(note (vii) 53 - - - 53

1,552 10,018 1,630 702 13,802
FREBEEARAR —T-—FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

0. BENEFITS AND INTERESTS OF

DIRECTORS (Continued)

(@) The remuneration of every director is set
out below: (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
there was no amount paid or payable by the Group to the
directors or any of the highest paid individuals as set out
in note 11 below as an inducement to join or upon joining
the Group or as compensation for loss of office. Except
for the agreed waiver of director’s fee for the year ended
31 December 2021 and 2022 by Mr. XIONG, Zhengfeng,
there was no other arrangement under which a director
has waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the
years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

Note:

(i) Mr. XIONG, Zhengfeng has agreed to waive his director’'s
fee during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022.

(ii) Dr. WONG, Kin Lae Wilson was re-designated from an
executive director to a non-executive director and ceased
to be the chairman of the Board on 10 December 2021.

(iii) Dr. WONG, Man Hin Raymond was re-designated as the
chairman of the board of directors of the Company (the
“Board”) on 10 December 2021.

(iv) Mr. WONG, Ying Man John was appointed as the vice-
chairman of the Board on 10 December 2021.

(v) Mr. FAN, Ren Da Anthony retired on 21 May 2021.

(Vi) Mr. NG, Yiu Ming resigned on 1 October 2021.

(vii) Dr. KO, Siu Fung Stephen was appointed on 1 October
2021.

(b) Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Other than those disclosed in note 27(a), no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group’s business to which the Company was a party
and in which a director of the Company and the director’s
connected party had a material interest, whether directly
or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the year.
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10. ESHNAZENERE)

@ BUEENMESH|IIWOT : (&)

HZE2022F R2021F12 A31HIEFE  AEBEHES
MNREMEERA N1 @SS HFMALIES
MAREENFESMARE BB E - BRAZEE
RERBHREHE2021 F 120224 12 A3 HILFENE
EEeIN  WEEMZHEAIREKRERERZ2022F K
20214 12 A 31 B ILFE T FEN -

Wi

0] BEIFIE A R B EA R Z 2021 G5 )2 2022 F 12 A 31 B 14
EMESIE -

(i) BB THNTESATAIENTES - WH2021F12
B10RTHBETEESER -

(iii EVBEETN2021F12 A10REREAALFESS([&E
BE®DEE-

(iv) BEGEEN2021FE12 A10BELZTAEZSRITE -

v) B ER AR 2021 E5 A 21 HIET ©
(vi) AR % A7 2021 510 A 1 BEHE -

(vii) SOEE+R2021 F10 A1 HEE -

b) EFEXRS X RPFHSEPHEXRFZ

BRPMFE27(2) BERSD - MR S AE B R B A A F)
RARTZAEBEE LA RBEEREFMETAEKR
M (THERRER) BRIEARS  THEAHH—
F A ERR o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

1. FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

The five highest paid individuals in the Group during the year
included three (2021: three) directors whose emoluments
are reflected in the analysis presented in note 10. The
emoluments of the remaining two (2021: two) individuals are
set out below:

GRMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(NBBREN)

1. EfumEHFMAL

AEES U REHMA LR EIEIM(2021F : 3 EE -
WEHE O BN E10 - 8T 267 (20214 = 260) &=
FALZBEDTAT

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT

Salaries and other emoluments e R E b B 1,092 1,362
Discretionary bonuses BB AEAL 260 225
Retirement scheme contributions RIREB R 92 185
1,444 1,772

The emoluments of the other two (2021: two) individuals
with the highest emoluments are within the following bands:

BRI &= A L 262 (2021 F : 262) S ARSI T -

Number of individuals

AE
2022 2021
HK$Nil — HK$ 1,000,000 BB EE = T 2% 1,000,000 7T 2 1
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 A% 1,000,001 JTTE 7B 1,500,000 7T - 1
FMREEARAT —T - _FFif
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

2. EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on
the profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the
Company of HK$30,504,000 (2021: HK$41,960,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
501,276,000 (2021: 498,807,000) shares in issue during the
year. The weighted average number of ordinary shares is
calculated as follows:

2. EREF
) BRELRZREF

SHEEREKR B TR AR A B R FE A FE SRS
30,504,000 7t (2021 F : 7% 41,960,000 7T ) RABEF A 2
BT INREF 1R B 501,276,000 (2021 4F : 498,807,000)
TR o TR HIEETE AT ¢

2022 2021
’000 000
T8 T2
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January 71 A1 BEZT 2 EB 501,200 494,500
Effect of share options exercised TEERE 2 8
(note 23(a)(ii)) (Bff 5 23(a)(ii)) 76 4,307
Weighted average number of 12 A 31 Bz E i s
ordinary shares at 31 December 501,276 498,807

(b) Diluted earnings per share

The calculation of diluted earnings per share is based on
the profit for the year attributable to shareholders of the
Company of HK$30,504,000 (2021: HK$41,960,000)
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
501,290,000 (2021: 500,245,000) shares (diluted). The
weighted average number of ordinary shares (diluted) is
calculated as follows:

(b) EBREBEERF

STEEREERN R ANAD R R B AT E GRS
30,504,000 7T (2021 F : &% 41,960,000 7T ) Mo 0t 15 %
#501,290,000 (2021 £F : 500,245,000) (#8) Limp - &
AN IRE (B8 s E AT ¢

2022 2021
’000 ‘000
TR T
Weighted average number of ordinary 712 A 31 B 2 E @& ~ hiig g
shares at 31 December 501,276 498,807
Effect of deemed issue of shares RBER R EEARET AT RERIE
under the Company’s share option BTG 2 R (Mi5E22)
scheme for nil consideration (note 22) 14 1,438
Weighted average number of ordinary 512 A 31 B 2 @Ak 2 hnE 5
shares (diluted) at 31 December %k (HE5E) 501,290 500,245
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(NBBREN)

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 13. Y¥  BMEMRXEREAEEE

AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS

Buildings Furniture,
held for fixtures and
Construction ownuse Plantand equipment Motor Right-of-use Total
inprogress ~ #EEMA  machinery B#-  vehicles  Sub-total assets HETEE
BRI ZBEN HERKE ZERRE RE Nt RREEE ait
HK$000  HK$000  HKS'000  HKSO000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$000
BETT  A¥fr A%t AT B¥Tr BT BT BT
Cost RA
At1 January 2021 H2021 %1 A1 5247 185108 219481 156,949 14211 580996 21185 602,181
Exchange adjustments it 101 4,882 5,261 5,464 243 15,951 496 16,447
Additions i 21,437 - 6,842 3,768 140 32,187 - 32,187
Transfers &y (25,200 - 12,106 13,095 - - - -
Disposals HE /% - - (2,697) (4,041) (10) (7,648) - (7,648)
At 31 December 2021 K001 F12 B 31 B 1585 180990 240992 175235 13684 621486 21681 643,167
At1 January 2022 H2022%1 A1 1585 189990  2409%2 175235 13684 621486 21681 643,167
Exchange adjustments ot (118) (13,044) (14,752) (15,675) (625) (44,214) (1327) (45,541)
Additions i 14,934 - - 4,580 588 20,102 - 20,102
Trangfers &5 (15,186) - 4,465 10,721 - - - -
Disposals HE/BE - - (2,481) (2312) (442) (5,235) - (5,235)
At 31 December 2022 R2022%F12 731 B 1215 176946 228224 172,549 13205 592,139 20364 612493
Accumulated depreciation g
At1 January 2021 202151 A1R - 161380 175910 79,757 10928 427,975 1235 440327
Exchange adjustments HARE - 4,221 3,698 3,188 210 11,317 312 11,629
Charge for the year TEEHE - 2,178 6,105 23,728 952 32,963 508 33,471
Disposals e /B - - (2.427) (3,596) (729) (6,752) - (6,752)
At 31 December 2021 2021512831 B - 167,779 183286 103077 11361 465,503 13172 478675
At1 January 2022 H2022%1A1H - 67,779 183286 103077 11361 465,503 13172 478675
Exchange adjustments it - (11384 (10177 (10,126) (47) (32,234 667 (33,101)
Charge for the year FERME - 2,110 6,258 22,053 661 31,082 497 31579
Disposals HE /% - - (2,239) (2,079) (308) (4,710) - (4,710)
At 31 December 2022 R2002F12 B 31 B - 158505 177134 112925 1,077 459641 12802 472443
Net carrying value REFE
At 31 December 2022 R2022F12 B 31 B 1215 18441 51,090 59,624 2128 132498 7552 140,050
At 31 December 2021 R2021 412831 H 1,585 2,211 57,706 72,158 2323 155983 8509 164,492
FIRBEARAT —T-—F&%RK 109
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBBREN)

3. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (Continued)

Right-of-use assets represent leasehold land under medium-
term leases. The Group owns several industrial and office
buildings where its manufacturing facilities and office
premises are primarily located. The Group is the registered
owner of these property interests, including the underlying
leasehold lands. The leasehold land components of these
owned properties are presented separately only if the
payments made can be allocated reliably.

13. % BERKEREAEEE (@)

EREEERTHEE THEED - AEEHALET
EMPAKRE - HEERE IR DGR EBLRZRAIKN
B ARERzEYFEED (BRARBEE L) Mm%
BA - BEMXNRIBRAAIEDRR  ELEAME
MEETMES T EBE -

The analysis of carrying value of properties is as follows: YIEBREFESTAT ¢
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Medium-term leases FHIEE
—in Hong Kong - B 2,723 3,614
— outside Hong Kong - BB 23,270 27,106
25,993 30,720
Representing: 4K
Buildings held for own use FEBAREY 18,441 22,211
Right-of-use assets TREEE 7,552 8,509
25,993 30,720
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(NBBREN)

4. INCOME TAX IN THE CONSOLIDATED 14. R&GZEMBRARNFAEH
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

Current taxation in the consolidated statement of financial 4R & B FSAR 3K 2 BNERFR1SH ¢
position represents:

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Provision for the year (note 8(a)) NEFERAE (M 8()
- Hong Kong Profits Tax - BAREH 3,821 3,796
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax - PRI EASHL 1,356 3,348
5,177 7,144
Provisional tax paid SEANE
- Hong Kong Profits Tax - BTG (3,576) (4,224)
- PRC Enterprise Income Tax - RS (520) (1,107)
(4,096) (5,331)
1,081 1,813
Balance of income tax BEFEASHBRESERS
relating to prior years (235) (151)
846 1,662
Represented by: E
Current tax assets BNEATR IR & B - 664
Current tax liabilities BIEAR IR B & (846) (2,326)
(846) (1,662)

FMREZARAT —T - —F4%H (W
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

I5. DEFERRED TAX

Analysis of deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows:

5. IEALEFIIE

ERRAEERBEINAOT

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT
Deferred tax assets EETR IR E = 2,865 3,000
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEE (159) (163)
2,706 2,837
The components of deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised ~ RNEERGE M EMRNERPERRZELHBEE, (&
in the consolidated statement of financial position and the (&) FY4ER R H & F) 2 sHI50 T ¢
movements during the year are as follows:
Depreciation
allowances
in excess of
the related Other
depreciation temporary
SBITEEX differences Total
REBITE HOEEgER &t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
BT BB T BT
Deferred tax arising from: IEFZER B 2 ELEH :
At 1 January 2021 MN2021F1 A1 R (138) 2,710 2,572
Exchange adjustments HmEs) s o2 - 62 62
(Charged)/credited to profit  (F1B%) 7 AfE18z (FiEE 8(a))
or loss (note 8(a)): 9) 212 203
At 31 December 2021 72021 F12 31 H (147) 2,984 2,837
At 1 January 2022 720221 H1H (147) 2,984 2,837
Exchange adjustments Hpge) g% - (177) (177)
(Charged)/credited to (HBr) s AFERR (H7E8(@)
profit or loss (note 8(a)): (10) 56 46
At 31 December 2022 R20229 12 431 H (157) 2,863 2,706
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GRMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(ABERELN)
16.  INVENTORIES 6. =FE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Raw materials RH R 92,309 91,572
Work in progress A 19,692 25,884
Finished goods EERK & 86,490 102,062
198,491 219,518
The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an ~ FEZHEZOMCHERRERWT
expense is as follows:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Carrying amount of inventories sold FEIHERMAE 933,137 1,262,476
Write-down of inventories FERE 912 129
Reversal of write-down of inventories 17 & Jil{E& [21 % (978) (1,324)
933,071 1,261,281

During the year, certain aged inventories were sold, and as a
result, a reversal of write-down of inventories of HK$978,000
(2021: HK$1,324,000) has been recognised and included in
cost of inventories sold.

RERN BFTREGEEEYL AU GFEERERRLEE
978,000 7T, (2021 £ : ##E 1,324,000 7T) B HER G AER

FREBEEARAR —T-—FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SEMKBRERMNEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(NBMAEN)
7. TRADEAND OTHER RECEIVABLES 17. BZRHEAMERERR
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T ST I
Trade receivables Z ZFEIWER K 159,402 301,224
Other receivables H U ER 5K 11,029 17,315
Deposits and prepayments & RTE A 7,924 5,860
178,355 324,399
(@) Ageing analysis @) FRERDT
The ageing analysis of trade receivables as of the end of the  RIREHIRE FEWBETIZXAZR M7 EHOTET -
reporting period, based on invoice date, is as follows:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Within 1 month 1{EAR 41,281 92,112
More than 1 month HBiBE1EABLRIEAR
but less than 3 months 93,280 161,443
More than 3 months BB3EABLR12@A
but less than 12 months 24,841 47,565
Over 12 months tBiE12 @ A - 104
159,402 301,224

The Group’s trading terms with customers are mainly on
credit. The credit term generally ranged from 30 to 120

days. Further details on the Group’s credit policy are set out

in note 26(a).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(NBBREN)

I7. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES I7.
(Continued)

ESREMEWIRR (&)

(b) REREZESZEWVERN

(b)  Trade receivables that are not impaired

The ageing analysis of trade receivables that are neither 2B &N ERMENE S EBIRF 2 BREEDTILLAT -

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as

follows:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Neither past due nor impaired R A B EISORE 142,448 244,883
Within 1 month past due B DR 1 A 15,259 41,006
More than 1 month m AR 1 B AE DR 3EA
but less than 3 months past due 978 14,389
More than 3 months mAAEAIEAE DR 12(EA
but less than 12 months past due 717 842
Over 12 months past due BB 1218 A - 104
Amounts past due but not impaired B HIE R ERIE 16,954 56,341
159,402 301,224
(€)  Currency analysis (c) E¥DW
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade receivables are AN E B 5 KRR REEEN T EEE :
denominated in the following currencies:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
HK$ BIT - 13
United States Dollars (“‘US$”) =TT 106,295 194,099
British Pounds (“GBP”) WS 728 45,881
Renminbi (‘RMB”) AR 52,379 61,231
Total At 159,402 301,224
MREBEERAR —T-_FFH
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SEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBBREN)

18. BANKAND CASH BALANCES 18. RITRIREEH
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T ST I

Time deposits with maturity 3B A AEEARE HBTF X

within 3 months 305,687 163,372
Cash at bank and in hand RITFER RS 28,692 81,430
334,379 244,802

As at 31 December 2022, the bank and cash balances of the
Group denominated in RMB amounted to HK$55,994,000
(2021: HK$8,224,000). Conversion of RMB into foreign
currencies is subject to the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale and
Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations.

9. TRADEAND OTHER PAYABLES

R2022F 12 A31H @ AEBEUAREFEMNRITEIRS
4585 5 78 555,004,000 7T (2021 4F : 7B 58,224,000 7T ) ©
AR 5 3 5 N B 38 <7 AR B B¢ HNE B IRAS B YA A TE -
SHE R FE TR G o

19. BZREMEMIKRR

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$'000

BET T BEET T

Trade payables (note a) B SRR (fiTa) 162,873 240,097
Accrued charges and other payables &2 F & E b FE{TBR X 43,361 43,137
Contract liabilities (note b) GHBE (FizEb) 684 -
206,918 283,234

The above balances are expected to be settled within one
year.

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. Annual Report 2022
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9. TRADEAND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Note:

(@) The ageing analysis of trade payables as of the end of the
reporting period, based on invoice date, is as follows:

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

GRMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

9. BESREMENSIRIRE®)

=T
F=1113
&

(BB REN)

(@ NREPREFERNEFRERAHZRRAMOT

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Within 1 month 1EAR 36,645 54,133
More than 1 month HRiE 1 EAE LR 3EA
but less than 3 months 104,259 160,096
More than 3 months HBAIEAELR12{EA
but less than 12 months 20,421 23,300
Over 12 months B@12{8A 1,548 2,568
162,873 240,097
The carrying amounts of the Group’s trade payables are ~ ASEE FENERAREEBE FFIEHEE :
denominated in the following currencies:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
HK$ BT 11,496 17,568
us$ v 44,998 39,716
Euro BT 546 637
RMB AR 105,833 182,176
Total ol 162,873 240,097
(b) Contract liabilities represented the billing in advance of sales (o) AHABEENRFHEEERNTBMGK
of goods from customer.
Movements in contract liabilities: EHBENEE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’'000
BET T BT T
Balance at 1 January 1 A1 B#E# - -
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of R MR IHEIRAIFHZEHE R A EE N
billing in advance of sales of goods 684 -
Balance at 31 December W12 31 BEEH% 684 -

There is no amount of billing in advance of performance received 2B TEFTEMIB—F& A R BB ANTBKRFIESEE ° (2021 © &)
that is expected to be recognised as income after more than one
year. (2021: HK$Nil)
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SEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

20. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT
PLANS

The Group contributes to defined contribution retirement
plans which are available for eligible employees in the PRC
and Hong Kong.

Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, the
Group has joined defined contribution retirement schemes
for the employees arranged by local government labour and
security authorities (the “PRC Retirement Schemes”). The
Group makes contributions to the PRC Retirement Schemes
at the applicable rates based on the amounts stipulated
by the local government organisations. Upon retirement,
the local government labour and security authorities are
responsible for the payment of the retirement benefits to the
retired employees.

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund scheme
(the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund
Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the laws of Hong Kong)
for employees employed under the jurisdiction of Hong Kong
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the laws of Hong
Kong) (the “Ordinance”). The MPF Scheme is a defined
contribution retirement plan administered by independent
trustees. Under the MPF Scheme, the employer and the
employees are each required to make contributions to the
plan at 5% of the employees’ relevant income, subject to a
cap of monthly relevant income of HK$30,000.

At 31 December 2022, certain employees of the Group had
completed the required number of years of service under
the Ordinance and are eligible for long service payments on
termination of their employment. The Group is only liable
to make such payments when the termination meets the
required circumstances specified in the Ordinance and the
employees’ entitlement is not covered by the aforesaid
provident funds. At 31 December 2022, the Group’s
contributions to the MPF Scheme and the accrued interest
thereon exceeded the potential liabilities should the required
circumstances specified in the Ordinance be met.
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20. SREMRFRAEE

AEERATEREBAERESRMHEHRFERAG S

HAR o

REBEFBEMERZEZRESR  ARECMAZRERFTLBRE
PSR TR FERFCRANG B ([ hEBRAKEE ) -
AEBERBEEHWRFRERENSRIDERERAFTER
REHBIHAR - RIKIR - BEHBTSBREEPIE B REK
B T fRIKER -

AEERBCRBIERTRRF IR (FEEDIF4855)
RECEBRERBEGD) (BBEOFES7E) ([#RH]]) RDEER
REZZENREELE —HRHMERAESHI (BB
B ZuEedimBUERESEE - RERES
g AEENEERHASAREREEBH L% REES
SR Hre LR RE A% 30,0007T °

£2022F 12 A31H * AEEMIMHE THREFHE =
ERAINRTE FEEAREERUZERERES A
MAELIGEPIIEEZ BT AEBAMN 2 BEEAZETL
ABZERETEXNERERESNZSE - BEMERA
BIEG 2 B THER: - AEBE2022F 12 A31 BELQRES
HERETF 2 FEZSMETRE 2 EEAE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

20. DEFINED CONTRIBUTION RETIREMENT
PLANS (Continued)

During the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2022,
the Group had no forfeited contributions under the PRC
Retirement Scheme and MPF Scheme and which may
be used by the Group to reduce the existing level of
contributions. There were also no forfeited contributions
available at 31 December 2021 and 2022 under the PRC
Retirement Scheme and MPF Scheme which may be used
by the Group to reduce the contribution payable in future
years.

21.  BANKING FACILITIES

At 31 December 2022, the Group had unsecured revolving
banking facilities of HK$13,334,000 (2021: HK$13,150,000).
The banking facilities include documentary letters of credit,
trust receipt, bill payables, trade loans, trade guarantee and
corporate credit card. The Group did not utilise any of these
facilities as at 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$NIl).

22. SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS

Equity-settled share option scheme

The Company operates a share option scheme which was
adopted on 6 June 2003 for the purpose to give eligible
participants incentives or rewards for their contribution or
potential contribution to the Group (Refer to the Report of
the Directors in the Annual Report for the details of the share
option scheme).

GRMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)

20. REMFCEAREEE)

HE2021 FR2022F 12 A1 BILFE - REE I ERAF
BlRIRET &I R TE S 5T 8 MBS WA K - ANEE A F A
5 LR UARRR IR B R UK - 1R 2021 F K% 2022 F 12 A
318 NEENEA AR RREE RS EKHPEE
KT8 RoaTE SR 82U HR -

2. S|RITEEEE

R2022F 12 A31H - AEBRIRTES 2 EAEEKBEER
RS 4 5 7 #13,334,000 7T (2021 4F : 7% # 13,150,000
To) c RO ZEEREUAMEA - iU BHE
B BHERKEDER - NEBMK2022F12 431 H%
BEA LMRITEEREE (2021 F « &) -

22. DRBAERNINRS
s E iR RS 8

AN REE—ER 200346 A6 BRI HEETE - 1t
ET 3l iRt R E S B R AE R BBt sk A BB T AL B
BRizEER2EE (BHHE  B2HFRIPESTSHRE
RIEARERTE]) o

FREBEEARAR —T-—FFH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

SEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BB REN)
22.  SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued) 22.

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

(a) Details of the movements of the Company’s (a)
outstanding share options, which have no specific
vesting conditions, held by directors, employees and
other eligible participants during the year ended 31
December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

URBAEBNINARS (&)

LIRS AR B R & ()

HE2021 FEM2022F 12 A1 HILFE &£ B
BERHMEERLEERENARRLERTRE
B RITEBRIENEBFEOT

Number of share options
BREHA

Total share

options

granted

at initial date

and existed at

31 December

2022
RIBAH Outstanding Outstanding at
RIER at1 January 31 December
R202F 2022 Exercised Lapsed 2022
Type of Date of Exercisable Exercise 128318 20228 during the during the R202%
participates grant period price FEW 1818 year year 12731
ShEEH RiEEH A ﬁ%ﬁ ARRE Rl RERTTE REEHH i

HK
Directors 20 July 2012 20 July to 2012 0.69 17,900,000 1,200,000 - (1,200,000) -
B2 20127 R 20H to 19 July 2022
2012%7R208
202257 A198
Employees 20 July 2012 20 July to 2012 0.69 24,380,000 250,000 (125,000} (125,000 -
&8 201247 A20H to 19 July 2022
2012%7R208
Z202257H19H

42,280,000 1,450,000 (125,000) (1,325,000) -
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22.  SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

(a) Details of the movements of the Company’s
outstanding share options, which have no specific
vesting conditions, held by directors, employees and
other eligible participants during the year ended 31
December 2022 and 2021 are as follows: (Continued)

GRMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(BB REN)

22. URGAEBNINARS @)
DESEENERERTE (8

(@) AEZE2021FFM2022F 12831 BILFE EEF &
BERHMEERLEERENARRLERTRE
B RITEERENSEESFBOT - (B)

Number of share options
Bz
Total share
options
granted
at initial date
and existed at
31 December
2021
s B Outstanding Outstanding at
Rk at 1 January 31 December
72021 F 2021 Exercised 2021
Type of Date of Exercisable Exercise 12H31H #2021 F during the #2021 F
participates grant period price PeRi:o) 1A1H year 12A31H
20E R FiLAE AT oyl BEERE KT RERTE KITE
HKS
B
Directors 20 July 2012 20 July to 2012 0.69 17,900,000 7,200,000 (6,000,000) 1,200,000
EE 2012F7H20H to 19 July 2022
2012%7R20H
E2022F7A19A8
Employees 20 July 2012 20 July to 2012 0.69 24,380,000 950,000 (700,000) 250,000
BB 2012F7H20H to 19 July 2022
20124 7H20H
£2022%67H198
42,280,000 8,150,000 (6,700,000) 1,450,000
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SEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

22.  SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)

(b) The number and weighted average exercise prices of
share options are as follows:

22. URGAEBNINARS @)
DESEENERERTE (8

(b) FEEEZEELIEFSITEENT

2022 2021
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price share options price share options
InFEFg iB IR RE ¥ BN E
TEE ZHE 1T k&
HK$ ’000 HK$ '000
ik TR ik Fik
Outstanding at the FHIRITE
beginning of the year 0.6900 1,450,000 0.6900 8,150,000
Exercised during the year ~ ANF[E17f# 0.6900 (125,000) 0.6900 (6,700,000)
Lapsed during the year REFEH - (1,325,000) - -
Outstanding at the end REFIERITE
of the year - - 0.6900 1,450,000
Exercisable at the end NEFIEAIITE
of the year - - 0.6900 1,450,000

No options outstanding at 31 December 2022.

The options outstanding at 31 December 2021 had an
exercise price of HK$0.69 and a weighted average remaining
contractual life of 0.55 years.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, share options
of 125,000 (2021: 6,700,000) were exercised and resulted
in 125,000 (2021: 6,700,000) ordinary shares being
issued with proceeds of approximately HK$86,000 (2021:
HK$4,623,000). The related weighted average price at the
time of exercise was HK$1.01 (2021: HK$1.11).

1,325,000 (2021:Nil) share options with unit value of
HK$0.0929 lapsed by reason of expiration of the share
option scheme. The total value of the share options lapsed
of approximately, HK$122,000 (2021:Nil) was transferred to
retained earnings during the year.
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72021 4F 12 A 31 BARTTFERE 21T E &2E10.690 7T
FONEF 8 N ROFER0.554F o

B E2022F 12 H31 B IEF [+ B 17 {125,000 % i i
# (2021 £F : 6,700,000) + & E ¥ 17125,0000% & @ &
(20214 : 6,700,000) ° %95 ¥ 86,0007 (2021 F : & &
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BB HEST2IZHE - 1,325,000 AL BB A 2 o L BB (LT
B 10.09297T ° B K 7R A BE AR 1 48 (E 475 % 122,000 7T
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

22.  SHARE-BASED PAYMENTS (Continued)

Equity-settled share option scheme (Continued)
(c) Fair value of share options and assumptions

The fair value of services received in return for share options
granted is measured by reference to the fair value of share
options granted. The estimate of the fair value of the share
options granted is measured based on Black-Scholes
pricing model. The fair value measurement is categorised
within level 3. The contractual life of the share option is used
as an input into this model. Expectations of early exercise
are incorporated into the Black-Scholes pricing model.

Fair value of share options and assumptions:

GRMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)

22. UR#OHAERHNINRS @)

DR EENBRESTSE (8

) BREZATERESR
REHBREMNES RS, ATE2EHE L ERE
AFEMETE - FIREERE i A FEIREHER

FHE o RFEADEIFE - BEREZANFHIERIIA
B 2BAIE - REHRRTETERNEHER -

B 2 A THERRR

Date of grant

BFBH
20 July 2012
201247 H20H
Fair value at measurement date NN A=E AN =] HK$0.0929
Share price & E HK$0.6900
Exercise price 1TE(E FIK$0.6900
Expected volatility (expressed as TERRR I8 (AR axiERN
weighted average volatility T8 T 3% P A N
used in the modelling under TR IER )
the Black-Scholes pricing model) 33.073%
Option life (expressed as weighted B EE B (AZEEHIER
average life used in the modelling I8 TN E%EFT R IntE
under the Black-Scholes T RIBERT)
pricing model) 3 years
Expected dividends TEHARR B, 6.687%
Risk-free interest rate (based on ERRFR(EIF
3-year Hong Kong Fund IMNERSEFH)
Exchange Notes) 0.182%

The expected volatility is based on the historical volatility
(calculated based on the weighted average remaining life
of the share options), adjusted for any expected changes
to future volatility based on publicly available information.
Expected dividends are based on historical dividends.
Changes in the subjective input assumptions could materially
affect the fair value estimate.

There were no market conditions associated with the share
option grants.

TEHYR MR T 128 R R (1R 8 B HE 2 0 19 T/ F AT
BAE - UBBREARASER AN B RKEEAE
EHRE - BHRENIBEZREFE - TBARRKRE
BZEBRAHRAFEZGFHEREATE -

R 2 R TSI R o

FREBEEARAR —T-—FFH
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SEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

23. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS

23. EX - RERRE

(@) Share capital @ Bx
0] Issued share capital (i) 2EITRAK
2022 2021
Amount Amount
Number of ot | Number of &5
shares HK$’000 shares HK$'000
REHE BT T fEiEE = BT IT
Ordinary shares, issued EER ' B&TRAR:
and fully paid:
At 1 January »1A1H 501,199,860 467,578 494,499,860 462,333
Shares issued under share 2417 7 B IRRERS 19
option scheme 125,000 98 6,700,000 5,245
At 31 December 12 A31H 501,324,860 467,676 501,199,860 467,578

The holders of ordinary shares are entitled to receive
dividends as declared from time to time and are entitled to
one vote per share at meetings of the Company. All ordinary
shares rank equally with regard to the Company’s residual
assets.

(ii) Shares issued under share option scheme

During the year ended 31 December 2022, options were
exercised to subscribe for 125,000 (2021: 6,700,000)
ordinary shares of the Company at a total cash consideration
of HK$86,000 (2021:HK$4,623,000).

(iii) Terms of unexpired and unexercised share
options at the end of the reporting period

TEREEAGETHRRFS RN S - LA ERRE
EER L RER—BERERR - FATBRELSEERS
EEHEARS L -

(i) BRERITZRG

HZE2022F 12 A31 B IEFE - BT EERR#E125,000(2021
& :6,700,000) fx A A1 E @ - AR E A E#86,0007T
(20214 : #%4,623,0007T) °

(i) R|EMRREEH 2 ARBPRARTEOBRE

Number of share options

. . . . BREZHE
Exercise period Exercise price
1765 TEE 2022 2021
20 July 2012 to 19 July 2022 HK$0.690
2012 7 A20A&E 202247 A19H V&1 0.690 7T - 1,450,000

Each option entitles the holder to subscribe for one ordinary
share in the Company. Further details of these options are
set out in note 22.
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23. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(b) Dividends

(i) Dividends payable to shareholders of the
Company attributable to the year

GRMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)

23. EBEX - - REERBRE @)

b)) BB

() AFEEFRISERDRRREN

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT
Interim dividend declared and B S KR 2 A
paid of 2 HK cents per I8 8 AT EBAREE 210
ordinary share (2021: 2 HK cents per (20214 : SR E@BAIEE 211)*
ordinary share) * 10,026 10,024
Final dividend proposed after the RS HARE 5% 2 R AP
end of the reporting period of B AR BSR40
4 HK cents per ordinary share (20214 : FRREBRBE4(0)
(2021: 4 HK cents per
ordinary share) 20,053 20,048
30,079 30,072

300,000 share options were exercised after the announce
date of interim dividend of 2021 but before the latest date
to qualify for interim dividend of 2021. As result, there
are 300,000 ordinary shares difference compare with the
announced interim report of 2022, which is entitled interim
dividend of 2021 amounted to HK$6,000.

The final and special dividends proposed after the end of the
reporting period have not been recognised as liabilities at the
end of the reporting period.

* 300,000 % B M #EFE 2021 FREARR B A A EIR B ERE
18152021 R EAR BRI &E A HZATTT(E - Bt - BHE
AHFHY 2022 G AR BREREAHEL - /5 300,000 % T imAR = 58 -
A E AP HIR B 2021 45 56,0008 7T °

RS BIRR S MRS 2 R R R B R & IR
AERRAME -

NREBEARARF —T__F5FH
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SEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

23. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(b) Dividends (Continued)
(i) Dividends payable to shareholders of the

Company attributable to the previous financial
year, approved and paid during the year

23. EBEX - - REERBRE @)

b) BB

(i) REBEFERNREEFQATARREERERFE
ERAER <Y

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T BT T
Final dividend in respect of the BAEFERAREEAFEEER
previous financial year, approved S AR B 410
and paid during the year, of (20214 : FRREBPBEE 400)
4 HK cents per ordinary share
(2021: 4 HK cents per
ordinary share) 20,053 20,036
Special dividend in respect of the BAEFESREERFEECIENR
previous financial year, approved S AFRILBEE S
and paid during the year, of (2021 5 : GREBAEE 211)
nil HK cents per ordinary share
(2021: 2 HK cents per
ordinary share) - 10,018
20,053 30,054

(c)  Nature and purpose of reserves
(i) Exchange reserve

The exchange reserve comprises all foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial
statements of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in
accordance with the accounting policy set out in note 4(b).

(i) Capital reserve

The capital reserve comprises the fair value of the actual
or estimated number of unexercised share options granted
to employees of the Group and other eligible persons
recognised in the accordance with the accounting policy
adopted for share-based payments in note 4(q).
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23. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(c)  Nature and purpose of reserves (Continued)
(iii)  PRC statutory reserve

Pursuant to the laws and regulations governing the PRC
enterprises, certain of the Group’s PRC subsidiaries, which
are wholly foreign-owned enterprises, are required to allocate
at least 10% of their after-tax profit but before dividend
distribution to general reserve until the reserve has reached
50% of their registered capital. The general reserve can only
be used, upon approval by the relevant authority, to offset
accumulated losses or increase capital. Appropriation to
general reserve during the year amounted to approximately
HK$1,892,000 (2021: HK$3,632,000).

(d) Distributability of reserves

At 31 December 2022, the aggregate amount of reserves
available for distribution to shareholders of the Company
was HK$33,510,000 (2021: HK$43,037,000). After the
end of the reporting period, the directors proposed a final
dividend of 4 HK cents (2021: 4 HK cents) per ordinary
share and a special dividend of nil HK cents (2021: nil HK
cents) per ordinary share totaling HK$20,053,000 (2021:
HK$20,048,000). These dividends have not been recognised
as liabilities at the end of the reporting period.

(e) Capital management

The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital
are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern, so that it can continue to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders, by pricing
products and services commensurately with the level of risk
and by securing access to finance at a reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages its
capital structure to maintain a balance between the higher
shareholder returns and the advantages and security
afforded by a sound capital position, and makes judgements
to the capital structure in light of changes in economic
conditions.

GRMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)

23. EBEX - - REERBRE @)

() RBEZHEERBENE)
(i) HEUEERE

KRPRZEEMETHOEZ B AEBZAENE
NRIBINEBERE  BIE&RD10% D 2 RERFDEE
TEHEE EEZRBEIMEANS0% AL - TRHEE
AUEEHERIERRKHERBEBIIENER - AF
ENEELMEEEEENRB1,802,0007T (2021 4F :
751 3,632,000 7T) °

(d) WP ERE

MR2022F 12 A1 HRFH A DB TARBIRE 2 EESE
& 78 33,510,000 7T (2021 4F : 7 # 43,087,000 ) ° RA
MEBKRE  EZ2FTRSR LT BBRARHREBE 41
(2021 4 : BEE41l) RS WA B B8 B Z(L (2021
& BEI) - A 5B 20,053,0007T (2021 4F @ B E
20,048,0007L) - R EEIRELERERERAAE -

() EXEHE

AEBZERNEBREERANREAEE  HELEY
Be) - AR HBERERRREH‘RE R MEMBRA LR
WA - A mER RERR KT R ZARRE RARE
RALZZERES -

7O B % AR T A AR LA T R
R RIFRERRHESBERRR - RAEMHER TEY
AR BB 2 LI -

FREBEEARAR —T-—FFH
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SEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

23. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(e) Capital management (Continued)

Consistent with industry practice, the Group monitors its
capital structure on the basis of a net debt-to-adjusted
capital ratio. For this purpose the Group defines net debt
as total debt (which includes trade and other payables) plus
unaccrued proposed dividends. Adjusted capital comprises
all components of equity less unaccrued proposed
dividends.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group’s
strategy, which was unchanged from 2021, was to maintain
the net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at reasonable level.
In order to maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue
new shares, return capital to shareholders, raise new debt
financing or sell assets to reduce debt.

The net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio at 31 December 2022
and 2021 was as follows:

23. EBEX - - REERBRE @)

(e) EXEE(E)
HITEEMN -3 AEESUFEEHLCHAEERLER A

Hi AR R RSB ) TR 2RI B R - &
ABENBIEMAEDN T BT ERIRERS

#H1E2022F 12 A31 B + AEE 2 KEUFE 2021 F—H
REBEFAEEFAERANGIEKTE - BT HEFAR
LEf) - AREB AT EEIRS FREZKE - BT
REBRATRE S5 EEMERNLEEENRDE
I8 o

R 2022 FF K 2021 F 12 A 31 H 2 % & (F B & A AR H,
FlanT -

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$’000
BET T o

Current liabilities: mENEE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EAER IR 206,234 283,234
Add: Proposed dividends o ERIRERE 20,053 20,048
Net debt S8E&EFE 226,287 303,282
Total equity B 645,866 670,830
Less: Proposed dividends A Bk ERRE (20,053) (20,048)
Adjusted capital BABRER 625,813 650,782
Net debt-to-adjusted capital ratio FE EEFEREHILLH 36% 47%
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23. SHARE CAPITAL, RESERVES AND
DIVIDENDS (Continued)

(e) Capital management (Continued)
The only externally imposed capital requirement is that for
the Group to maintain its listing on the Stock Exchange it

has to have a public float of at least 25% of the shares.

The Company receives a report from the share registrars on

GRMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(NBBREN)

23. EBEX - - REERBRE @)

(e) BEXEEE)

ME—ESNERIE AN B AR B GE - B AN SR B B S PR+

Lt AR EMAE DED 25% MR o

AAERBIREBRREMANRE - AR P RIFRRETT

substantial share interests showing the non-public float and ~ HIKERK (DR - WA RFAZ AR EFINEET25% 8 £
it demonstrates continuing compliance with the 25% limit R ° 78202212 431 B + AR #FH 63% (20214 : 70%)
throughout the year. As at 31 December 2022, 63% (2021:  HIf%f ©
70%) of the shares were in public hands.
24. COMMITMENTS 24, EIE
Capital commitments outstanding at 31 December 2022 not 12022 F 12 A 31 A& & M E 2 B IR B R R E A%
provided for in the consolidated financial statements were as ~ #EAAT -
follows:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT T
Contracted for: [RE SO
— Purchase of equipment and moulds - B E & 18 A 1,912 1,257

25. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(@) The Group as lessee

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases for
warehouses and carpark. As at 31 December 2022, the
portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio of
short-term leases to which the short-term lease expense
disclosed in note 9.

(b) The Group as lessor

Operating leases relate to property, plant and equipment
owned by the Group. The lessee does not have an option to
purchase the property at the expiry of the lease period.

25. REHEZRH
@ FRBEEREHEA
ﬁﬁlmﬁﬂmwsﬁw HISHEEAEL - B 2022F 12

31H EHHEESENTIOPRENENEEERNE
HATHS ZEAHM

(b) AEBERHEA

REMERAKEREENYE  BENLREER - ABEA
EREEEREREBEZYE -

FREBEEARAR —T-—FFH
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SEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

25. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS

(Continued)

(b) The Group as lessor (Continued)

Minimum lease payments receivable on leases are as
follows:

25. REHEZHE)

(b) AEEEHZHMEA@E

HENREEKEENFEELT

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT T
Within year 1 —FR 1,197 -
The following table presents the amounts reported in profit ~ F&RIIREF ABRE S
or loss:
2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BET T BT
Lease income on operating leases R EMHEERA 1,770 -

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial
risks: credit risk, concentration risk, liquidity risk, interest
rate risk and foreign currency risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of
financial markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse
effects on the Group’s financial performance.

(@)  Credit risk and concentration risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to bank
and cash balances and trade receivables. The maximum
exposure to credit risk is represented by the carrying amount
of each financial asset in the consolidated statement of
financial position.

Substantially all the Group’s bank and cash balances are
deposited in financial institutions in Hong Kong and the PRC.
The credit risk is limited as the majority of counterparties
are financial institutions with high credit ratings assigned
by international credit rating agencies or stated-controlled
financial institutions with good reputations.

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. Annual Report 2022

26. HEERERE

AEEMNRSEEERSBEVERR  FERR  £FHE
- B2RBIERR - MERBRMINERR o REBHE
BREREEEERNEBRTISOTARAE - REKH
AEEABRENBETNEERER) ©

() EERBRREFRSE
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(@)  Credit risk and concentration risk (Continued)

The Group’s exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. The default
risks of the industry and country in which customers operate
also have an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent.
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 40% (2021: 32%); and 95%
(2021: 82%) of the trade receivables was due from the
largest customer and the five largest customers respectively.

In respect of trade receivables, management has a credit
policy in place and the exposure to the credit risk is
monitored on an ongoing basis. Individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a certain
amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s past
history of making payments when due and current ability
to pay, and take into account information specific to the
customer as well as pertaining to the economic environment
in which the customer operates. Trade receivables are due
within 30 to 120 days from the date of billing. Normally, the
Group does not obtain collateral from customers.

The Group measures loss allowances for trade receivables at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs. As the Group’s historical
credit loss experience does not indicate significantly
different loss patterns for different customer segments,
the loss allowance based on past due status is not further
distinguished between the Group’s different customer bases.

The directors of the Company have considered the credit
risk of trade receivables and note that there was no actual
loss nor significant past due experience over the past
10 years, including periods of unfavourable economic
conditions. The directors consider the aggregate risks arising
from the possibility of credit loss on trade receivables are not
significant and no allowance for credit losses was made as
at 31 December 2022.

Further quantitative disclosures in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivable are set
out in note 17.

GRMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)

26. BIERER(®)

@ FERBREPRREE)

AEEMAXNEERBRETESIBUNRPNEAABTEY
2 . RPRLEMETENBERNENRBEEEERRE
w2 BERES/) - RBEPR - AEENEERBRET
[E/240% (20214 : 32%) : FEUWE 5 EREH #995% (2021
F:82%) D RIRBFRAEFPHMAEGARS o

RESHREERME  EEBBMENEERR LR
BEZMARNEERR SRMAEERBEETEES
Bz EPUEETENEENE - HEFEHIEHHER
B IR 2 ik LI EFRES - XEBEFH
ERIE R R P PR EERBENER - B RURNRH
BEHEREE ARLITI0E120BNEH - AEE—RTEM
P WEGEH G -

AEENEREEFEANBREEBENSRIEERS
RN R RHIB R - AR ARENEL EEBHELRY
ARATREFEFPHNBAEATEREEZE  FRERB
HRENBERER T EE—PROANEEANTRET,E -

AREBEECEREESRNERNEERR @ RIZBET
FREVEEEBEIEABHREK  BEETFILER
REARE - BEERA BHREKERAEHBEEBEME
AREERITAEAR - BRN20229F12 A31 B EELH(E
BEEREE -

FRARBEEESRKERMELNEERRNE-FE
(LB NMFE7 -

FREBEEARAR —T-—FFH
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SEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(b) Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are responsible
for their own cash management, including the short term
investment of cash surpluses. The Group’s policy is to
regularly monitor its liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash and adequate
committed lines of funding from major financial institutions to
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and longer term.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturities at the end of the reporting period of the Group’s
financial liabilities which are based on the contractual
undiscounted cash flows (including interest payments
computed using contractual rates or, if floating, based on
rates current at the end of the reporting period) and the
earliest date the Group and the Company can be required to

pay:

26. BIERER(®)

(b) ESRBMER

AEEET 2 ENERERARESERSEEET &
EEMRSBHRRENENEFRARNRSHER - AEHE
ZBRBEMERRE RIERZREBMEF R - AEREHE
FRENReHERATNELERR 2EFS - WESIHEH
REMRBEFF -

TRINEAEEZTENCRABRREPRRZHBRTE
HWHRFS - EEERANLARBMBRZRER (BRER
BOEZHE B FBHNEHERRERR  FFHEZ
ME) RAREZERRER BHE

2022 2021

Total Total
contractual Within contractual Within
undiscounted 6 months undiscounted 6 months
cash flow oron cash flow oron
Carrying  MiEAH demand Camying  #iHEAH demand
amount MEEHE  6EARI amount  RUEERE  6EAAL
IRAE ZBEER  EXERR REE LREN  ERENR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT BETT
Trade and other payables A REMENERR 206,234 206,234 206,234 283,234 283,234 283,234
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(c) Interest rate risk

The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from bank
and cash balances which were contracted at short-term
variable rates and expose the Group to cash flow interest
rate risk. The Group’s interest rate profile as monitored by
management is set out in (i) below.

GRMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)

26. BIERER(®)

() FIRER

AEEFRARIBEREG KRS ESEBEBEZNTES
FEFERSIBASEERSREFIRRER - NEHZF
ERERREEEEEALEI ()T

(i) Interest rate risk (i) F) 2= [ Bsx
2022 2021

Effective Effective

interest interest

rate rate
BERF= HK$°000 EBRAI% HK$’000
% BT T % BT TT
Fixed rate bank deposits ~ $R77 7 173 & E F| & 1.03% 305,687 0.25% 163,372
Variable rate bank deposits 81T F BiF70F 8 0.75% 20,485 0.07% 67,285

(ii) Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2022, it is estimated that a general
increase/decrease of 100 basis points in interest rates,
with all other variables held constant, would increase/
decrease the Group’s profit after tax and retained earnings
by approximately HK$171,000 (2021: HK$562,000)
respectively. Other components of equity would not be
affected (2021: HK$NIl) by changes in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been determined
assuming that the change in interest rates had occurred
at the end of the reporting period and had been applied to
the exposure to interest rate risk for financial instruments
in existence at that date. The 100 basis point increase
or decrease represents management’s assessment of
a reasonably possible change in interest rates over the
period until the next annual reporting date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2021.

(i) BRBREDHF

R2022F 12 H31BEMBEME A ZHZTILNER
T s — AR FIR ARG SR A 10086 F + o BIg N,
B ARE B 2 BREEFIE R AR D EFEL S BB 171,000
JC (2021 4F : B#562,0007T) - EfhiES T A RS
ZESJEE (2021 4F BT o

LA ERSRESTEREMNELEHENRERARELEME
 WEEANRMNZAMES RKEITAELIETENE T
ABZFEER - 1008 FEMSBAPDIEERBHEE T —
E4F E s IR 2 FIR e S B E B) 2 71 h o DT
2021 FFHE[R 2 EAEHST -

FREBEEARAR —T-—FFH
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SEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk

(i) Foreign currency transactions

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and expense transactions that are denominated in a
currency other than the functional currency of the operations
to which they relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk are
primarily US$ and GBP.

(i) Recognised assets and liabilities

In respect of trade receivables and payables held in
currencies other than the functional currency of the
operations to which they relate, the Group ensures that the
net exposure is kept to an acceptable level, by buying or
selling foreign currencies at spot rates where necessary to
address short-term imbalances.

(iii) The following table details the Group’s exposure at

26. BIEREERE @)
(d) MR
(i) IER S

AEBEZHRNUAZFREEHNEEBUIN 2 EHIIE
ZHARZ I MmAAEINER R - BRIERR 2 B%

(i) CECRIALEREE
ERNERZYREERENIINZEBRBE2EMEZRE R
ENFIE  AEEeEU2RMEHN T FER - URE
EXBEARELINE  BRFZESQHEFE BRI
BE e

(i) TRIIRAEERN S RA A R ER A RE

the end of the reporting period to currency risk arising BEDIM—EBEEIENEEXBEMEATRYNE
from recognised assets or liabilities denominated in KR o
a currency other than the functional currency of the
entity to which they relate.
2022 2021
US$’000 GBP’000 US$’000 GBP’000
FEx FRE FET T 51§
Trade and other receivables & 5 & B E U IR K 13,810 78 25,045 4,313
Bank and cash balances ~ #R1TRIBEEH 34,408 277 28,613 33
Trade and other payables & 5 & E A FETBR X (5,806) - (5,125) -
Net exposure arising from  HERZ EE K
recognised assets and BEFBUFAE
liabilities 42,412 355 48,533 4,346
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26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
(Continued)

(d) Foreign currency risk (Continued)

(iv)  Sensitivity analysis

The following table indicates the approximate change in the
Group’s profit after tax and retained earnings in response to
reasonably possible changes in the foreign exchange rates
to which the Group has significant exposure at the end of
the reporting period.

GRMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)

26. BIEREERE @)
(d) MRS (E)
(iv) BRBESH

T%F%ﬂﬁﬁ B s R PR E KA

ZETZ/\

A RE B YRR IR B 1R AR B8 B MK 2 BE A0 2

2022 2021
Effect Effect
Increase/ on profit Increase/ on profit
(decrease) in after tax and (decrease) in after tax and
foreign retained foreign retained
exchange earnings exchange earnings
rate HERBIE rate HERTE
E=xigm, A RIRE bEE 3 0, i A R ARE
O ) BRlz 8 CRA) BNz &
HK$’000 HK$’000
BYETT BB T
GBP HEE 5% 139 5% 1,930
5% (139) (5%) (1,930)

Results of the analysis as presented in the above table
represent an aggregation of the effects on each of the Group
entities’ profit after tax and retained earnings measured in
the respective functional currencies, translated into HK$ at
the exchange rate ruling as at the end of the reporting period
for presentation purposes.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined assuming that
the change in foreign exchange rates occurred at the end
of the reporting period and applied to each of the Group
entities” exposure to currency risk for non-derivative financial
instruments in existence at that date, and that all other
variables, in particular interest rates, remain constant. In
this respect, it is assumed that the pegged rate between
the HK$ and the US$ would be materially unaffected by
any changes in movement in value of the US$ against
other currencies. The percentage of increase and decrease
in foreign exchange rate represents the management’s
assessment of reasonably possible changes in foreign
exchange rates over the period until the next annual
reporting date. The analysis is performed on the same basis
for 2021.

ERFIIRZ DM E R

= SE SN

AIERB BREE ST

REBNEEBIERERRZER (E‘fzait&ﬁ‘ﬁ 5 ) AHRE

TCRt R Z AR 2 85T »

BRE DM I RERE

REPNBERRELE - YRARA

SESEEURNZANFEZHITESMTAMARZE

R -

mABHEMAERR(LEMER)RFEAE - 51

b BEETHETZHOER B I ERAETHBEME

BeBBMIXEATE - MEJZESHEEEEHBFTER
REE N EAFEREHRILBE 2SRRI GEEE) - #TT

DM ERE R 2021 F AT RIE 2 AR o

MREXBRAF

R FFR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SEMKBRERMNEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBBREN)

26. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 26. BiEREREE %)

(Continued)

(e) Categories of financial instruments at 31 (e)

BZE2002F 1283 BRI EER

December 2022

2022 2021
HK$’000 HK$'000
BT T BT

Financial assets: EREE

Financial assets measured LA SRR AT EM S RMEE

at amortised cost 498,092 548,369

Financial liabilities: S@as:
Financial liabilities at amortised cost ~ LABEfARKANETEM SR EE 206,234 283,234

() Fair values f 2FE
All financial instruments are carried at amounts not materially

different from their fair value as at 31 December 2022 and HZ A EEEANE o

2021.

27. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY 27. BHEAZEARZREH
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES

(@) Key management personnel remuneration @ FEEEEAEME

Remuneration for key management personnel of the Group
represents amounts paid to the Company’s executive
directors as disclosed in note 10.

1045 °

FiEemI Az ASRSFEEEN 2022 F K& 2021 F 12 A 31

SEEXEEEBAEMEBEINARBRNTESENMHE

2022 2021

HK$’000 HK$’000

BT T BT

Short-term employee benefits MHIE B RA 11,623 12,229
Post-employment benefits &1 AREF 702 702
12,325 12,931
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

27. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY
TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES
(Continued)

(b)  Other related party transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company
entered into an agreement with RJW Technology Company
Limited (“RJW Technology”) in acquiring two (2021: one)
units of machinery at a consideration of HK$1,900,000
(2021: HK$950,000), which were delivered to the Group’s
premises. In addition, the Company sold air purifiers (2021:
sold air purifiers and device casing) at an aggregated
consideration of HK$6,000 (2021: HK$25,000) to RJW
Technology. RJW Technology is majority controlled by the
executive director and chairman of the Board, Dr. WONG,
Man Hin Raymond.

(c) Balances dealt with related parties

Balances with subsidiaries are disclosed in the Company’s
statement of financial position contained in note 30(a).

28. EVENTSAFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

After the end of the reporting period, the directors proposed
a final dividend. Further details are disclosed in note 23(b).

GRMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)

27. BEMAEZ2ERRZREE)

(by HiEEEASEE

HZE2022F 12 A31 BIEFE - AARERIWEITERA
A (TRIW 1T |) 532 #pa% » LAJE®E 1,900,000 7T (2021 4F -
B 950,0007) MR EBEE 248 (2021F 1 18)#2E - B
RSB AL B R WE o AN - ARARIMA [RIWEAMT | HEZ=
SRS (2021 F - ERFCEREBING) - BRE RS
#6,000 7T (2021 4F : &% 25,000 7T) ° RJW Technology
WITEERESTEEEXEETE2EH -

(c) BAHMAER

HEAZRMBARZEHRDEAR ANFEARRE Z W
30(a) PHIFE -

28. AHEMREER

WERREK - EREBIRERIABE - FBERMEE23()

FREBEEARAR —T-—FFH
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SEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

29. SUBSIDIARIES’ INFORMATION

The following list contains only the particulars of subsidiaries
which principally affected the results, assets or liabilities
of the Group. The class of shares held is ordinary unless
otherwise stated.

29. MIBATESFR
VEREBEE BERABIMBRAASBENT - B
EERIBIE - FTiSE 2 IRIE AL mAR -

Particulars of Proportion of
issued and paid ownership interest held
Place of Place of up capital by the Company Principal
Name of company incorporation operation BERTR NG activities
RRER g LEhE BRRAZFE BYER TEEHR
Mass Top Corporation The British Hong Kong 1 share of US$1 100% Property holding
Virgin Islands A 1REERER1ET RENE
ERRXS
Raymond (Panyu Nansha) Electrical The PRC The PRC Registered capital 100% Manufacture
Appliances Development Company H i US$22,380,000 and sale of
Limited (Note) AR electrical home
FIR (EBEY)EE%RE 22,380,000 7T appliances
ARAE (i) RERHE
FHESR
Note: Bi3E

The statutory financial statements of Raymond (Panyu Nansha)
Electrical Appliances Development Company Limited for the
financial year ended 31 December 2022, prepared under generally
accepted accounting principles applicable in the PRC, have been

audited by BN EH & EHAER AT,
Raymond (Panyu Nansha) Electrical Appliances Development

Company Limited is a wholly foreign owned enterprise registered
under PRC Law.

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
mEMBRERMEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

(L\BMAEN)
30. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 30. ZAAQTEKER
COMPANY
(@)  Statement of financial position @) HBRRE
2022 2021
HK$’000 HFS$'OOO
BT T AT T
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment WE -~ BE K& 1,031 1,374
Investments in subsidiaries B A RRE 173,703 173,703
174,734 175,077
Current assets RBEE
Inventories FTE 9,177 27,269
Trade and other receivables B 5N E b EUER TR 110,513 242 482
Loan to a subsidiary B ARIER 31,192 -
Current tax assets BIEAF A& B - 662
Bank and cash balances RITNMIR S EREE 278,372 236,560
429,254 506,973
Current liabilities RBAE
Trade and other payables 5 R EMERIRER 63,981 65,123
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEASTRT /B 2 RIBR 3K 38,284 105,708
Dividends payable JERTAR B 351 322
Current tax liabilities BNEAfIE B & 38 -
102,654 171,153
Net current assets REBEEFE 326,600 335,820
Total assets less current liabilities #AEERABEE 501,334 510,897
Non-current liabilities IRBERS
Deferred tax liabilities EEHIBEE 148 148
NET ASSETS EEFE 501,186 510,749
CAPITAL AND RESERVES EXRf#EE
Share capital gz 467,676 467,578
Reserves T 33,510 43,171
TOTAL EQUITY R 501,186 510,749

Approved by the Board of Directors on 24 March 2023 and 120234 3 A 24 BlEE E& it R -
are signed on its behalf by:

WONG, Man Hin Raymond WONG, Ying Man John
BEXE BEREH

Director Director

BF EZE

FRBEARAT —T - —FEH 139
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
SEMKBRERMNEE

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

30. FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF THE 30. ZXATEBER ®)

COMPANY (Continued)
(b) Details of changes in the Company’s (b) TFREIAFQATREREDZARBOEFENE

individual components of reserve during the BFE
year:
Share Capital Retained Total
capital reserve earnings equity
R& ExfiE REER Btk
(note 23(a)) (note 23(c)(ii)
(5 23(a) (F5E23()(i)
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
iz BETT AU BETTT BETTT
At 1 January 2021 R2021 1 51 Bt 462,333 756 62,169 525,258
Changes in equity for 2021: 2021 ERGEE
Profit and total comprehensive FERHR
income for the year PEEEE - - 20,946 20946
Dividends approved in respect PERE
of the:
- current year -TE 23(0)() - - (10,024) (10,024)
~previous year - 23(b)(i) - - (30,054) (30,054)
Shares issted under share BRECET R
option scheme
- gross proceeds -FhE 23(a)(i) 4623 - - 4623
— transfer from capital reserve - MERGRESY 622 (622) - -
5,245 622 (19,132) (14,500)
At 31 December 2021 R2021 12 A 31 B&e 467,578 134 43,037 510,749
At 1 January 2022 R202251 51 Bt 467,578 134 43,037 510,749
Changes in equity for 2022: 022 FEHEE .
Proft and total comprehensive RERR
income for the year PAYELE - - 20,430 20,430
Dividends approved in respect PAERE
of the:
— current year - A 23(0)f) - - (10,026) (10,026)
~previous year -fF 23(b)(i) - - (20,053) (20,053)
Shares issued under share BRECETLRG
option scheme
- gross proceeds - Eha 23(ai) 86 - - 86
~ transfer from capital reserve - RERREER 12 (12) c -
Share options lapsed BRERDES - (122) 122 =
98 (134) (9,527) (9,563)
At 31 December 2022 R2022E12 A 31 AR 467,676 - 33,510 501,186

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd.

Annual Report 2022




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3I. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES

Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
directors have made the following judgements that have the
most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements (apart from those involving
estimations, which are dealt with below).

Significant increase in credit risk

ECL are measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL
for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for stage 2 or stage 3
assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition. HKFRS 9
does not define what constitutes a significant increase in
credit risk. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset
has significantly increased the Group takes into account
qualitative and quantitative reasonable and supportable
forward-looking information.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future, and other key
sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting
period, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year, are discussed below.

(a) Depreciation

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
depreciated on a straight-line basis or reducing balance
basis over the estimated useful lives. The Group reviews
annually the useful life of an asset and its residual value, if
any. The depreciation expense for future periods is adjusted
if there are significant changes from the previous estimation.

GRMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)

3. EE¥ERFEEME

V& FA & 5T BUR B 1 5 B 4
ERBEFEREES  EFFHTUTHREMHR

RPERNERBEREATENHE OF RAGF O H BT R
S AT XA )

FERBRAEEE M

F-HEREENEHNEEEBRRESR 12EARREES
BONRETE  IRE _RE=EREERATNEHE

Hﬁﬁﬁ%?@ﬁ’]ﬁé‘ﬁ#z cBE—HEEMNEERRABXE
BARFBEEIEN ZEESEBEE _KR - BEVBR
:@@,ﬁ'J PO EH EERREEEMNEXRERIELTE

& aﬂﬁ—lﬁéfFE’HZﬁH& BRERENE  A&EEHe
ERAEMAEBRIFNEEREEMELER -

(RN PSES: Ve P9

TXHwmEBARNEERRLBERRET TARE
MEMEFBERR  ZSBEREREFEEREERARD
BREEAR T —EAMRFEELENHENERRR

(@ wE

M~ B MR A REREEENERRUBREBEERAIR

BENGEFAIERFHMAE SESSFRANEZRFEE

E‘J—Iﬁﬁﬁiﬁﬂﬂﬁ&ﬁ%@ﬁm WA RERHFERXER
BEGEBFNERRCMAR -

NREBEARARF —T__F5FH
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SEMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LB REN)

3I. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(b) Impairment of property, plant and equipment and
right-of-use assets

In considering the impairment loss that may be required for
certain property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and investments in subsidiaries, the recoverable amount of
the asset needs to be determined. The recoverable amount
is the greater of the fair value less costs of disposal and the
value in use. It is difficult to estimate precisely the fair value
price because quoted market prices for the assets may not
be readily available. In determining the value in use, expected
cash flows generated by the asset are discounted to their
present value, which requires significant judgement relating
to items such as level of revenue and amount of operating
costs. The Group uses all readily available information in
determining an amount that is a reasonable approximation
of the recoverable amount, including estimates based on
reasonable and supportable assumptions and projections of
items such as revenue and operating costs.

(c) Impairment of trade receivables

The Group considers the ECLs of trade receivables are
based on management’s estimate of the lifetime ECL which
is taking into account the credit loss experience, ageing of
overdue trade receivables, customers’ repayment history
and customers’ financial position and an assessment of
both the current and forecast general economic conditions,
all of which involve a significant degree of management
judgement.

The provision of ECLs is sensitive to changes in
circumstances and of forecast general economic conditions.
The information about the ECLs and the Group’s trade
receivables are disclosed in notes 17 and 26(a). If the financial
condition of the customers or the forecast economic
conditions were to deteriorate, actual loss allowance would
be higher than estimated.

RAYMOND Industrial Ltd. Annual Report 2022
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3I. CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
ESTIMATES (Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
(d) Income taxes

Determining income tax provisions involves judgement
on the future tax treatment of certain transactions and
interpretation of tax rules. The Group carefully evaluates
the tax implications of transactions and tax provisions are
set up accordingly. The tax treatment of transactions is
reconsidered periodically to take into account all changes in
tax legislation.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses not
yet used and temporary deduction differences. Those
deferred tax assets can only be recognised to the extent
that it is probable that future profit will be available against
which the unused tax credit can be utilised, consequently
management’s judgement is required to assess the
probability of future taxable profits. Management’s
assessment is constantly reviewed and additional deferred
tax assets are recognised if it becomes probable that
future taxable profits will allow the deferred tax asset to be
recovered.

(e) Allowance for slow-moving and obsolete
inventories

The Group performs regular reviews of the carrying amounts
of inventories with reference to aged inventories analyses,
projections of expected future saleability of goods and
management experience and judgement. Based on these
reviews, write-down of inventories will be made when the
carrying amounts of inventories fall below their estimated net
realisable value. Due to changes in customers’ performance,
actual sale of goods may be different from estimates
and profit or loss could be affected by differences from
estimates.

GRMBRRME

(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
(LBE®REMN)

3. EEHERFEMRTT @)

At THBRENETERR (8)
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Five Years Financial Summary

IFHERE

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR #REEHER
LOSS
Year ended 31 December
HIE12A31HILEE
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT IT T T BT T T IT BT T
Revenue A 1,285,918 1,155,578 1,289,515 1,433,612 | 1,063,058
Profit before taxation BRAS R 62,298 41,910 76,879 47,272 34,336
Income tax expense FriS i (9,724) (2,937) (13,661) (5,312) (3,832)
Profit for the year RATREREG
attributable to REE A
shareholders
of the Company 52,574 38,973 63,218 41,960 30,504
2= A b )
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL #r& MR &K
POSITION
As at 31 December
12A31B&E
2018 2019 2020 2021 2022
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
ST I ST T BT T PEHET T BT T
Property, plant and YIZE - BB MR
equipment 184,011 169,692 153,021 155,983 132,498
Interests in leasehold BIEEEHEEIFE
land held for own BAZ TR
use under operating
leases 6,664 - - - -
Right-of-use assets FREEE - 8,973 8,833 8,509 7,552
Deferred tax assets EEMIRE = 3,296 3,424 2,739 3,000 2,865
Net current assets mENEEFE 418,379 424,038 490,789 503,501 503,110
Deferred tax liabilities BRIETIBEAE (181) (173) (167) (163) (159)
Net assets BEFE 612,169 605,954 655,215 670,830 645,866
Share capital &N 461,807 462,333 462,333 467,578 467,676
Reserves {1 150,362 143,621 192,882 203,252 178,190
Total equity b 612,169 605,954 655,215 670,830 645,866
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